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Letter of Transmittal

FLORIDA LEAGUE OF CITIES

Letter of Transmittal for the Florida Municipal Loan Council

March 25, 2021

To the Board of Directors of the Florida Municipal Loan Council:

am pleased to submit the Comprehensive

Annual Financial Report ("Annual Report")

of the Florida Municipal Loan Council ("the
Council™) for the year ended September 30,
2020.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data
and the completeness and fairness of the pre-
sentation, including all disclosures, rests with the
Florida League of Cities, Inc., as the Administra-
tor for the Council.

The Administrator is responsible for maintain-
ing adequate internal controls designed to
provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are executed in accordance with the Council’s
authorization and are recorded as necessary to
maintain accountability for assets and to permit
preparation of financial statements in accor-
dance with accounting principles generally ac-
cepted in the United States of America.

Due to the inherent limitations in internal con-
trol, no system of controls can provide absolute
assurance that misstatements, whether as a
result of error or fraud, will not occur or that all
control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have
been detected. The concept of reasonable as-

surance recognizes that the cost of the control
should not exceed the benefits likely to be de-
rived and that the valuation of costs and ben-
efits requires estimates and judgments by man-
agement. The Administrator believes the internal
control structure provides reasonable assurance
regarding the safekeeping of assets and reliabil-
ity of all financial records.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the
enclosed data is accurate in all material respects
and is reported in a manner designed to present
fairly the financial position and results of opera-
tions of the Council. All disclosures necessary to
enable the reader to gain an understanding of
the Council's financial activities have been in-
cluded.

The basic financial statements contained in this
report have been audited by Shorstein & Shor-
stein, P.A. Their audit was conducted in accor-
dance with auditing standards generally accept-
ed in the United States of America. The goal of
the independent audit was to provide reasonable
assurance about whether the Council's basic
financial statements for the year ended Sep-
tember 30, 2020, are free of material misstate-
ment. The independent accounting firm, Shor-

LOCAL 301 S. Bronough Street, Suite 300
VOICES Tallahassee, Florida 32301
MAKING P.O. Box 1757

LOCAL Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1757
CHOICES
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Introductory Section

stein & Shorstein, P.A., has issued an unmodified
("clean") opinion on the Council's financial state-
ments for the year ended September 30, 2020.
The independent auditor's report is presented as
the first component of the Financial Section of
the report.

Management provides a narrative introduction,
overview and analysis to accompany the basic
financial statements in the form of a Manage-
ment's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This let-
ter of transmittal is designed to complement the
MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.
The Council's MD&A can be found after the inde-
pendent auditors' report.

PROFILE OF THE COUNCIL

The Council was established pursuant to Section
163.01, Florida Statutes, to facilitate coopera-
tive and cost-effective financing for municipali-
ties and counties in the state. The Council was
created on December 1, 1998, under Chapter
163, Florida Statutes, pursuant to an Interlocal
Agreement initially by and among the City of
Stuart, Fla., the City of DelLand, Fla., and the
City of Rockledge, Fla.

The purpose of the Council is to enable partici-
pating governmental entities to finance or refi-
nance projects permitted by the Interlocal Act on
a cooperative and cost-effective basis, to benefit
from economies of scale associated with large
scale financings and to maximize the benefits
derived from the availability of moneys provided
by the state for funding projects. The Council is
authorized to exercise the privileges, benefits,
powers and terms of the Interlocal Act in con-
nection with the authorization, issuance and sale
of bonds.

Membership in the program may include the
state, its agencies, counties, municipalities,
special districts and school districts of Florida as
well as other entities approved by the Board of
Directors. Members benefit from the Council's

ability to achieve economies of scale and name
recognition due to frequent bond offerings in the
public market.

The Council operates as an Enterprise Fund
under the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) rules. Pursuant to the trust inden-
tures, members' earnings are credited to and all
expenses are reimbursed by the members. FMLC
General Operations cover those items neces-
sary for the Council operations not specifically
related to a bond issue and include the Board

of Directors' meeting expense and travel, audit,
insurance and other general operating functions.
The Council considers all its activities as operat-
ing activities.

The Council is authorized to issue up to $1.25
billion of debt for the fixed-rate program, which
includes the direct loan program, up to $200
million for the Commercial Paper program, up to
$2 billion for the Gas Bond program and up to
$180 million for the Design Build Finance/Build
Finance Financing Program.

On April 28,1999, the first series of bonds were
issued with the Florida Municipal Loan Coun-
cil Revenue Bonds, Series 1999. The first issue
included seven cities totaling more than $67
million in fixed-rate loans. Since inception, the
Council has closed 29 bond issues or tranches.

BORROWER SOLUTIONS

The Council offers short-term and long-term fi-
nancing options for local governments of all sizes
to finance capital projects, renovations and land
purchases or to refinance existing debt. Pooling
loans into one larger issue and creating econo-
mies of scale, in many cases, lowers the costs of
issuance and provides greater market access. A
variety of loan solutions are available including
fixed-rate bonds and private placement bonds
(direct loans). The Council also offers the Com-
petitive Capital Access Program, which works
with banks that are providing loans to local

9
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Florida Municipal Loan Council
Total Issued: $1.2 Billion, as of September 30, 2020

B Fixed Rate (87%) - $1,024,344,031
Capital Access Program (9%) - $107,817,825
Direct Loan (3%) - $30,943,786

Commerical Paper (1%) - $15,498,000

Florida Municipal Loan Council
Type of Borrower, FY 1999-2020

Capital Access Program Refunded Repeat M New
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Introductory Section

Florida Municipal Loan Council
Number of Loans by Population*
As of September 30, 2020

19.2%

< 15,000

M 15,000 - 60,000

> 60,000
Florida Municipal Loan Council
Amounts Borrowed by Population*
As of September 30, 2020

< 15,000

$183,430,000

$362,530,817

$461,470,000

M 15,000 - 60,000

> 60,000

**The Council has issued more than $1 billion in debt to make 132 loans and also facilitated 24 addi-
tional bank loans totaling nearly $108 million through the Capital Access Program. These charts do
not include loans closed through the Capital Access Program, the Series 2012 revenue bonds or the

Series 2017B City of Cocoa Beach CRA bonds.
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Letter of Transmittal

government entities. The loan amounts vary with
terms of repayment up to a 40-year maximum
period.

In addition, local governments that issue tax-
exempt bonds are required to follow federal tax
requirements at the time of issuance and for as
long as the bonds remain outstanding. Under the
program post-issuance duties, including invest-
ment of bond proceeds, continuing disclosure
and arbitrage rebate requirements, are man-
aged for the borrower. Post-issuance monitoring
is vital to maintain compliance with federal tax
requirements and to preserve the tax-exempt
status of the bonds.

The Council has primarily issued fixed-rate bonds
on behalf of small- and medium-sized borrowers
with many members becoming repeat borrow-
ers. The Council works with the following teams
of professionals and advisors:

FIXED-RATE BOND PROGRAM

» Florida Municipal Loan Council, Issuer
» Florida League of Cities, Inc., Administrator
» Bryant, Miller & Olive P.A., Bond Counsel

» Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson P.A., Disclosure
Counsel

» Public Resources Advisory Group, Financial
Advisor

» Waters and Company, LLC, Arbitrage Rebate
Consultant

» The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company,
N. A., Trustee

» Raymond James, Underwriter

OVERSIGHT

The Council is governed by a Board of Directors
(the "Board") consisting of not more than seven
elected public officials, each of whom shall be
appointed by the President of the Florida League
of Cities, Inc. There is no limitation upon the

—112

term of office of a director, and directors serve
until the expiration of their term in elected of-
fice, their resignation or their removal.

The Council has entered into agreements with
various professionals to provide support to the
program. The Council does not employ person-
nel; rather the management and administration
services are provided by the Florida League of
Cities, Inc., as Administrator. The Florida League
of Cities, Inc. is a nonprofit organization estab-
lished in 1922 to serve the interests of Florida
cities and has grown to include nearly all of
Florida's 412 municipalities as members.

The Administrator is charged with supervising
and coordinating the activities of the trustee,
financial advisor, auditor, bond counsel or other
service provider rendering services to the Coun-
cil. The Administrator is also responsible for di-
recting the investment of the project loan funds,
maintaining accounting records and financial
reports and approving applications for member-
ship.

Financial advisory services are provided by Public
Resources Advisory Group and involve bond mar-
ket updates and monitoring of each public bond
sale. A summary of each bond sale is provided
and presented to the Board. Additionally, Waters
& Company assists in arbitrage rebate compli-
ance. Through a contract with the Administrator,
Digital Assurance Certification, LLC, provides
assistance with post-issuance compliance and
repository services.

FISCAL YEAR 2020

The environment of historically low interest
rates for municipal borrowings during the fiscal
year provided municipal borrowers with favor-
able conditions to refinance existing debt and to
finance new capital projects.

2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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In fiscal year 2020, the Council closed its 29th
series of fixed-rate bonds, Series 2019B, issuing
$8.6 million of bonds to the City of Auburndale.
The Council also facilitated four bank loans in the
total amount of $24.3 million to the City of Sani-
bel, the City of Valparaiso, the City of Palatka
and the City of Belle Isle. Additionally, the Council
refunded or defeased $11 million in loans or 5.7%
of outstanding bonds.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

The preparation of this report was made possible
by the dedicated staff of the financial services,
accounting and publication departments of the
Florida League of Cities, Inc., as well as all ad-
ditional individuals who assisted with this effort
including the staff of Shorstein and Shorstein,
P.A. Appreciation is also expressed to the mem-
bers of the Board of Directors for their leadership
and service in matters pertaining to the Council’s
operations.

This financial report is designed to provide a
general overview of the Council's activities during
Fiscal Year 2020. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests
for additional financial information should be
addressed to the Administrator for the Florida
Municipal Loan Council, 301 South Bronough St.,
Suite 300, Tallahassee, FL 32301.

Respectfully submitted,

Jeannie Garner

Executive Director

Florida League of Cities, Inc.,
Administrator

13—
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Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Florida Municipal
Loan Council

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended

September 30, 2019

Clleilopbo. P- Hornitd

Executive Director/CEO
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Introductory Section

Florida Municipal Loan Council
Board of Directors
As of September 30, 2020

Florida League of Cities, Inc. (Administrator)
Executive and Financial Management Team

Isaac Salver

Chair
Councilmember
Town of Bay Harbor
Islands

Susan Starkey
Vice-Chair
Vice-Mayor
Town of Davie

Anne Gerwig
Mayor
Village of Wellington

Leo E. Longworth
Commissioner
City of Bartow

Frank C. Ortis
Mayor
City of Pembroke Pines

Kevin Ruane
Mayor
City of Sanibel

Teresa Watkins Brown
5 | Councilmember
L | City of Fort Myers

Jeannie Garner
Executive Director
Service since June 1, 1994

Paul Shamoun
Director, Financial Services
Service since August 15, 1995

Dana Anderson
Investment Analyst, Financial Services
Service since June 1, 2072

Scott Hamilton, CPA
Comptroller, Accounting
Service since September 27, 1982

Teresa Colvin, CPA
Trust Services Comptroller, Accounting
Service since July 6, 1993

Joseph Adams
Accountant Il, Accounting
Service since September 29, 2014

Molly Button
Assistant to the Comptroller, Accounting
Service since February 16, 2071
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SHORSTEIN & SHORSTEIN, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
8265 BAYBERRY ROAD
JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA 32256

JACK F. SHORSTEIN, C.P.A., J.D. (1929-2014) TELEPHONE (904) 739-1311
SAMUEL R. SHORSTEIN FACSIMILE (904) 739-2069
MARK J. SHORSTEIN, C.P.A. www.shorsteincpa.com

BENJAMIN I. SHORSTEIN, C.P.A.
MICHAEL K. PARRISH, C.P.A.
BARBARA J. HOUSTON, C.P.A.
JOAN B. MOELL, C.P.A.

WALTER L. HUNTER, C.P.A.
MARGARET R. CONOVER, C.P.A.
MELISSA R. STEPHENS, C.P.A.
JEFFREY C. PHILLIPS, C.P.A.
PHILLIP H. CAMPBELL, C.P.A.
JEWEL A. MCCANCE, C.P.A.
BEVERLY W. PARKER, C.P.A.

February 19, 2021

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors of the
Florida Municipal Loan Council:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Florida Municipal Loan Council,
which comprise the statements of net position as of September 30, 2020, and the related
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

MEMBERS: AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS « FLORIDA INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Florida Municipal Loan Council as of September 30, 2020, and the changes
in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the Council's financial statements
as a whole. The introductory section, statistical section, investment section and Schedule of Issues
Outstanding are presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
financial statements.

The Schedule of Issues Outstanding is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements
as a whole.

The introductory, statistical and investment sections have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

ot v Wk, 2. 4.
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Florida Municipal Loan Council
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

Our discussion and analysis of the Florida Municipal Loan Council (the Council) provides an overview of
the Council’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020. Because the information
contained in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is intended to highlight significant
transactions, events and conditions, it should be considered in conjunction with the Council’s financial
statements and notes to financial statements provided herein.

Financial Highlights

Key financial highlights for fiscal year 2020 are as follows:

On October 10, 2019, the Trust closed its 29" series of fixed-rate bonds, Series 2019B, issuing
$8.6 million of bonds. Using the combined purchasing power of the FMLC'’s bond pool program,
the Series 2019B bonds were issued on behalf of the City of Auburndale to finance the costs of
acquiring, constructing, and/or equipping of City Hall improvements, youth baseball facilities,
public safety radios, roof repairs, racquetball court relocation, recreational trail extensions,
street resurfacing, vehicle purchases and related improvements.

In connection with the issuance of the Council’'s Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B (the “Series
2019B Bonds”), the Assured Guaranty Municipal Corp. (AGM) Surety Bond originally issued on
September 28, 2017 was amended on October 10, 2019. The AGM Surety Bond, as amended,
funds the respective reserve accounts in amounts required to satisfy the respective reserve
requirements of the Series 2017B Bonds and the Series 2019B Bonds.

Program borrowers refunded or defeased $11 million in loans representing 5.7% of total bonds
outstanding at the beginning of the fiscal year.

Total assets and deferred outflows were $184,982,812 and total liabilities and deferred inflows
were $184,784,087 resulting in a net position of $198,725. Assets and liabilities declined over
the prior fiscal year as a result of scheduled debt service and members refunding loans prior to
original maturity.

Total operating revenues were $8.76 million, compared to $8.44 million in the prior fiscal year,
an increase of 3.8%. Total operating expenses were $8.74 million, increasing 3.5% over the
prior fiscal year. Revenues and expenses increased as a result of members refunding loans
prior to original maturity as well as the closing of the Series 2019B bond issue. Additionally,
investment earnings decreased as a result of the declining interest rate environment.

The Council also facilitated four bank loans in the total amount of $24.3 million to the City of
Sanibel, the City of Valparaiso, the City of Palatka, and the City of Belle Isle.

21—
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Florida Municipal Loan Council
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

Basic Financial Statements

The Council operates as an enterprise fund under governmental accounting rules that require the
preparation of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position provides information
regarding assets and liabilities as of September 30, 2020. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position provides information about our revenues and expenses for the year October
2019 through September 2020. The Statement of Cash Flows provides information about the various
cash activities incurred throughout the fiscal year, and is presented using the direct method with a
reconciliation of operating cash flows to operating income. The Council uses the flow of economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time the liabilities are incurred.

Financial Analysis

9/30/2020 9/30/2019 Change % Change
Assets
Current Assets $ 43,003,184 $ 39,412,542 $ 3,590,642 9.11 %
Noncurrent Assets 141,814,388 156,620,674 (14,806,286) (9.45) %
Total Assets 184,817,572 196,033,216 (11,215,644) (5.72) %
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Amount on Refunding 165,240 201,127 (35,887) (17.84) %
Liabilities
Current Liabilities 13,284,952 13,489,537 (204,585) (1.52) %
Noncurrent Liabilities 171,423,553 182,476,072 (11,052,519) (6.06) %
Total Liabilities 184,708,505 195,965,609 (11,257,104) (5.74) %
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Amount on Refunding 75,582 84,493 (8,911) (10.55) %
Net Position $ 198,725 $ 184,241 $ 14,484 7.86 %

2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report



Financial Section

Florida Municipal Loan Council
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

Financial Analysis (Continued)

9/30/2020 9/30/2019 Change % Change

Operating Revenues
Loan Interest and Member

Reimbursements $ 8,265,675 $ 7,958,355 $ 307,320 3.86 %
Investment Earnings 292,626 341,058 (48,432) (14.20) %
Allocation to Members 197,219 136,626 60,593 4435 %

Total Operating Revenues 8,755,520 8,436,039 319,481 3.79 %
Operating Expenses
Interest Expense 7,561,207 7,341,675 219,532 299 %
Administrative Fees 52,654 41,435 11,219 27.08 %
Trustee Fees and Other Fees 41,362 30,062 11,300 3759 %
Cost of Issuance Expenses 240,267 240,979 (712) (0.30) %
Allocation to Members 731,740 655,698 76,042 11.60 %
FMLC General

Operating Expenses 113,806 132,293 (18,487) (13.97) %

Total Operating Expenses 8,741,036 8,442,142 298,894 3.54 %
Change in Net Position 14,484 (6,103) 20,587 337.33 %
Net Position

Beginning of Year 184,241 190,344 (6,103) (3.21) %
Net Position

End of Year $ 198,725 $ 184,241 $ 14,484 7.86 %
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Florida Municipal Loan Council
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

The Council extinguished or defeased $11,005,000 of outstanding debt for fiscal year ending 2020. The
table below lists the members that refunded or extinguished debt during the year.

Refunded/
Extinguished

Principal

Borrower Series Original Par Amount
City of South Miami 2006 $ 5,625,000 $ 1,145,000
City of Palatka 2010A 7,665,000 6,265,000
City of Valparaiso 2010C 1,465,000 1,180,000
City of West Melbourne 2010D 3,820,000 2,415,000
Total $ 18,575,000 $ 11,005,000

Debt Outstanding

The Council is authorized to issue up to $1.25 billion of debt for the fixed-rate program which includes
the direct loan program, up to $200 million for the Commercial Paper program, up to $2 billion for the
Gas Bond program and up to $180 million for the Design Build Finance/Build Finance Financing
program.

For all series issued prior to 2008 and Series 2016, payments of the principal and interest on the bonds
when due are insured by a municipal bond insurance policy issued by National Public Finance
Guarantee Inc., formerly known as MBIA Insurance Corporation.

Series 2010B, Series 2011D, Series 2012A (2018-2033 maturities), Series 2012 B-1 (2019-2032
maturities), Series 2017B, and Series 2019B are insured by a municipal bond insurance policy issued
by Assured Guaranty Municipal Corporation.

There is no insurance or reserve fund associated with the private placement bonds, Series 2011 B-2,
Series 2012 B-2, Series 2018A, and Series 2019A. Additional information on the Council’s debt can be
found in Note 5 to the financial statements.

2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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Florida Municipal Loan Council

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

Debt Outstanding (Continued)

At September 30, 2020, the Council had 12 fixed-rate bond issues or tranches and 2 direct loans with

total debt outstanding of $181,469,414 as shown below.

The Council had the following change in debt:

Revenue Bonds, Series 2000A

Revenue Bonds, Series 2000B

Revenue Bonds, Series 2006

Revenue Bonds, Series 2009 St Aug Bch (Direct Loan)
Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 ABCD

Revenue Bonds, Series 2010BB (Direct Loan)
Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 B-1 & B-2
Revenue Bonds, Series 2011D

Revenue Bonds, Series 2012A

Revenue Bonds, Series 2012 B-1 & B-2
Revenue Bonds, Series 2016

Revenue Bonds, Series 2017B

Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A

Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A

Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B

Total Debt Outstanding
Bond Premium/Discount (Net)

Bonds Payable

2020 2019 % Change
$ 5,406,625 $ 6,568,519 (17.69) %
3,139,201 2,964,799 588 %
- 1,190,000 (100.00) %
460,648 499,694 (7.81) %
12,005,000 22,610,000 (46.90) %
685,000 750,000 (8.67) %
995,000 1,060,000 (6.13) %
42,170,000 43,220,000 (2.43) %
30,810,000 32,520,000 (5.26) %
23,125,000 24,895,000 (7.11) %
19,630,000 21,310,000 (7.88) %
6,100,000 6,450,000 (5.43) %
7,455,000 7,595,000 (1.84) %
16,390,000 16,500,000 (0.67) %
8,600,000 - N/A
176,971,474 188,133,012
4,497,940 4,147,997

$181,469,414

$192,281,009
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Florida Municipal Loan Council
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

Economic Factors

The Council was established pursuant to section 163.01, Florida Statutes, to facilitate cooperative and
cost-effective financing for local governments. As a result, the Council’s financial activity is dependent
upon the capital financing needs of its member governments as well as the existing financial market
conditions.

As reported by PRAG, the Council’s Financial Advisor, the fiscal year began strong with the national
unemployment rate at 3.5%, a 50-year low. Stocks rose to record levels for the period from October 1,
2019 through early February 2020. However, in mid-March 2020, the COVID-19 crisis triggered a
historic sell-off in financial markets as investors rushed for liquidity during an unprecedented time of
uncertainty. The Dow Jones Industrial Average dropped 13% on March 16, 2020, the second largest
one-day loss in the index’s history. Record layoffs followed as state and local governments imposed
stay-at-home restrictions and ordered the closure of non-essential facilities in an effort to limit the
spread of coronavirus. Unemployment reached an all-time high of 14.7% in April 2020 with 23.1 million
Americans out of work. Treasury and municipal bonds, typically safe investments, were also subject to
the extreme market volatility during this period. With investors on the sidelines, new municipal bond
issuance effectively came to a stop for several weeks.

In response to the economic crisis, the Federal Reserve and Congress took swift action aimed to
stabilize markets amid the liquidity crunch. The Fed lowered its federal funds rate target by 150 basis
points to a range of 0.00%-0.25%. Congress passed the largest ever economic aid and stimulus bill, a
$2 trillion package, which was signed into law on March 27, 2020. The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security Act, also known as the CARES Act, funded direct payments to individuals and
families, $250 billion for extended unemployment benefits, and $349 billion for small businesses through
its Paycheck Protection Program (an additional round of funding brought PPP to $659 billion). The
CARES Act also allocated $150 billion to state and local governments to pay for COVID-related
expenses. Further, on April 9 the Fed announced the creation of the Municipal Liquidity Facility that
authorized the Fed to purchase up to $500 billion in eligible short-term notes through the end of the
calendar year.

The monetary and fiscal actions by the Fed and Congress helped ease markets. With the pandemic
relief package, gradual reopening of businesses, and advances in vaccine development, financial
markets made a strong comeback. In fact, following the March 2020 bottom, the Dow had its best 100-
day performance since 1933. The stock index finished the fiscal year up 4.5%, short of record highs
reached in February. Still, with COVID-19 infections continuing to weigh on economic activity, the
recovery was uneven with unemployment closing the fiscal year at a significant 7.9%.

In terms of interest rates, the muni industry standard tax-exempt AAA MMD vyield curve began the fiscal
year inverted through maturity year 6; this means the yield on a 1-year muni bond (1.26%) exceeded
the yield of a 6-year muni bond investment (1.23%). Typically, in a healthy economy the yield curve
slopes upward, rewarding investors for lending money over longer periods of time and thereby taking on
the risk that inflation and interest rates will move higher. A flat or inverted yield curve signals that the
financial markets do not see excessive inflationary growth in the future, and an economic slowdown
could be on its way. The National Bureau of Economic Research determined the US economy entered
a recession in February 2020 triggered by the effects of COVID-19. By the end of the fiscal year, the
AAA MMD curve was still fairly flat however more upward sloping than at the start of the fiscal year. In
addition, yields dropped significantly over the course of the fiscal year despite the 10-year AAA MMD
skyrocketing 201 basis points over 11 days in March. Treasury yields experienced a similar pattern
during the fiscal year though the 10-year Treasury yield fell by an even greater extent than its AAA MMD
counterpart.
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Florida Municipal Loan Council
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

Economic Factors (Continued)

The benchmark 10-year US Treasury yield was 1.65% on October 1, 2019 and ended at 0.68% on
September 30, 2020, a 97-basis point drop. The 10-year AAA MMD was 1.41% on October 1, 2019
and ended at 0.87% on September 30, 2020, a 54-basis point decrease. The historical low for the 10-
year MMD occurred on August 7, 2020 at 0.58%. Overall, the spread between the 10-year AAA MMD
and 10-year Treasury yield tightened from 24 basis points to a minus-19 basis points, as the 10-year
MMD-Treasury ratio at the 10-year mark began the fiscal year at 85% and ended the fiscal year at
128%.

Despite the slowdown in debt issuance experienced in March due to the COVID-19 crisis, the municipal
bond market had a strong finish for the fiscal year with approximately 35% more in new bond volume
than the prior fiscal year as markets stabilized and borrowers locked in historically low interest rates to
fund new projects and refinance existing debt. Taxable municipal bonds were prominently featured.
According to Bloomberg, approximately $137.9 billion in taxable muni bonds were sold in fiscal year
2020. This compares to $36.6 billion in fiscal year 2019 and $31.3 billion in fiscal year 2018.

The historically low interest rate environment during the fiscal year provided municipal borrowers with
favorable conditions to refinance existing debt and to finance new capital projects.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Council’s finances. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be
addressed to the Administrator, Florida Municipal Loan Council, 301 South Bronough Street, Suite 300,
Tallahassee, Florida 32301.

27—



C
.9
‘»

O
o
+

()
Z
g

o

n
s

(-

()

£

()
e}

O
)
wn

-0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
Z99°0L0°L 1/8°869 Z9LTve Ch 068°99% 229°6ELE vZr'L0v'S
YOL'ZL6 000029 0£9'809°} Y0S'6LY L0Z'6EL‘E §29'988'c
855°€6 1/8'8L 2€5'€€9 98¢' /¥ L2y 66.°025°L
861 LL 719'G 85 12y 66.
6/8'%¢ 00L'€L 185092 ¥8L'9 - -
68189 00069 L€' 19 oL Ly - 000°02S‘}
- 99€'9 - - - -
299°0L0°L G0S'269 Z9LeTve ek 068'99Y Z29°6EL'E YZv' L0v'S
68Z'St8 Y€9'€L9 €08'02°0L €0S'6LY ¥50'8/8°C G29'988'c
€/£'591 1/8'8L 6GE'L.6'L 18€' 1Y 895°192 66.'025°L
- - - - 70l -
05289 128'8L 6L'€8€ 18€'LY vie 0S.'8LS°L
- - - - 051°192 -
£29'96 - 0L9'/85°} - - 6v0'C
zasig ag010z aoav uog bny 1S 40002 V0002
110Z seues soles 0L0Z seues 600Z Soues saleg soles

0202 ‘0¢ 42quiadag

NOILISOd 13N 40 SININILVLS«
|19UNO) ueo-] jeddIUN|y epLioj4

‘Sjuswialels |eroueul 8say} Jo ped |esbajul ue ase sajou BulAuedwoodoe ay] ,

$ pajoLISaIUN - UONISOd 18N
NOILISOd 13N

Buipunjey UO Junowy palioed

S33¥NOS3IY 40 SMOTANI d3dd343a
sanliqern [ejol

a|gqehed spuog

SonIIqer] JUsJINJUON

sapliger jusngd [ejol

sJaquisp\ 0} ang

sosuadx3 panJooy

S99 JOjesiSIuIWLpPY PanJody

asuadx }SaJsju| panJody

a|gqeAed spuog

sanliger jusJ4ind

s3aavin

Buipunjay Uo Junowy paltiaeg

S$309N0S3Y 40 SMOT4LNO a3yu=43d
sjessy [eloL

S|geAIg0SY SUBOT

SJoSSY JUSIINOUON

sjossy Jualing [ejol
sasuadx3 piedald
S99 JOJeljSIUILPY - S|qBAIS0aY SJUNOJDY
a|geAleoay sueo]
SjuaW)SanU|
syusjeninb3 ysed pue ysen
:S19SSY pajoL)say
$ uyseo

SEESTAUEIle)

S13ssv

2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

28




c O
R N
P

% "SjuswWwalels |eloueuly 8say} Jo Jed |esbajul ue ase sajou BulAuedwoodoe ay] ,
0p]

m -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ pajoLgsalun - UORISOd 18N
‘O NOILISOd 13N

(@

O - 8.2, Le'le - €60°'1LE - Buipunyay uo Junowy patiseq

C
H S33dNOS3Y 40 SMOTANI d3dd343a

/60856, 9ZY'v¥9'9 288'82€'0C ¥9r'/¥8'€C G86'959°CE 888'890 ' sajliqeln [ejoL
806°'26G°L 6EY'7,0'9 €€2'902'8l 0S.'€lS'Le LG.'veL'oe GG1'898'01 s|qefed spuog

B1 JUS1INJUON

17 jus.ng [ejoL
sJaquisj 0) ang
- - - - - - sosuadx3 panJooy

681 '59¢ /86'695 6¥9'celL‘c vll'elzZ'e ¥€2'2ES‘T £€2'002°C sal

8zL'e 86€'c 806°0L S09°'8 9€.'8 096°CL S99 JOjelSiuiupy panidoy
€1e's5L yrL'zeL 0SS v0€ 6S1'€9€ ¥96°2rS 0G€‘00} L asuadxg Jsausju| paniooy
81902 SY8'eey 16L°208°L 0S9°'1L06°L ¥€5°086°L €21'/80°L a|qefed spuog

Saniiqer] Juany

s3aavin

- - - ¥/8'8G1 - - Buipunyey UO JuUNoWy palieied

S32dNO0S3IY 40 SMOT4LNO azF{I43a

160856 01599 £60'99€°02 06S'889'cC 8/0'889°C¢ 888'890 '€ S}essy [ejoL
950°'6ev'L G18'959°G G€9'008°0l Le8CEY'LL L/€°1ve'0e 085°'00.'6E 8|qens08y sueo]
S]9SSY JUSJINOUON
1%0'62S 688766 8G17'G9S‘C 65/'G52'9 10L°9%€C 80€'89€ ' S}eSsy jus.in) [ejoL
- - - - Y0l - sasuadx3 predaid
- - - - - - S99 JojelsIulWpY - S|qeAI903y SJUNODY
16,881 0S2'18¢€ 866'€61 | 005288’ 9ev'ore ‘e 8v.'8ylL'L 9|qenieday sueo]
- - - 099891 ‘2 - - SjuswseAu|
062017 6£9°€L9 091°L20°C 665702 191 095'6L2°C sjusieainb3 ysed pue ysen
:sjossy pajollsay
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ yseD
SESS2VE k)
V8102 g/102 9102 z-a%l-9g VvelLoz akioe
saleg salleg saleg 210z seues salleg salleg S13SSsV

(penunuo))
020z ‘o€ 19quiaydeg
NOILISOd 13N 40 SININILVLS«
1ouno) ueo-] jeddiunyy epLioj4




"Sjuswale]s |eloueuly asay) Jo Led |esbajul ue ale sajou bulAuedwoooe ay| ,

G2/1'861 $ -0- $ Gzl'g6l $ -0- $ -0- $ pajolsalun - uonisod 19N
NOILISOd 13N
285G/ - - - - Buipunjay UO JunoWwy paiiseq

S30YNOSTY 40 SMOTANI d3dd343a

G0S'80L'¥8L 8 G/Z'0E 816'9/5'6 LE6°0€9°LL sanljiqel [ejol

€6G'€TLLL - - 86.°91C'6 SSY'SvLLL a|qefed spuog

Saniiger] Jus1JNouoN

2S6'v8Z'EL 8 §/zZ'0€ 0zl‘oge 9/¥'S8Y SaplliqelT Jusung B0l

e} o] - - - SJaquisiy 0} eng
168°0S - G/zZ'0€ 919‘0C - sesuadxg pan.ooy
0¥ 09 - - 198°C 2991 S99 JOjesSIUILPY PanIddy
AV AVX AR - - L9L°€LL 5/6°60L asuadx3 JsaJaju| panJooy
198°60°'0L - - 0.v¥'€6l ve8'€LE alqeled spuog

SSRNIqerT Us 1Ny

s3aavi

ovz'sol - - - - Buipunjay uo Junowy paliajeg

S32UNOSTY 40 SMOT4LNO Azd¥343a

2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

T/S718v81 3 000°622 816956 1€6°0£9°/1 sjoessy [ejoL
88E VL8 LYl - - 100°06€°E G8L6YLC 8|qeAe09y sueo
SJOSSY JUa1INJUON
¥81°€00°cY 8 000622 /169819 9. L8¥'GL sjessy Juaung [ejoL
G29 - - - /Ly sosuadx3 predaid
1zl'6e - 1zl'6e - - S99 JOJeJSIUILPY - S|qBAISISY SJUNODDY
1G€°2€Z0L - - £v9°9/2 oLzoLy 8|qenie0ay Sueo
018'62¥'2 - - - - Sjuswiseu|
z6eLLL0e 8 - ¥.2'016'S 611°G90°GL sjusjeninb3 yse) pue yseo
'S}ossy paojoLsay
62661 $ - $ 6.2'66L $ - $ - $ yseo
S)assy juain)d
[SET spung suopesado 96102 V6102
Jole\-uoN |leJaue) seles EEINEIS S13SSY

(panunuoy)
0202 ‘0€ 4oquiydas
NOILISOd 13N 40 SINJN3LVLS«
1ouno) ueo- [edidiuUnyy eplioj4

(e
.0
‘0

O
o
s

()
Z
g

o

0
s}

C

()

=

()
e}

O
e}
n

30




31

"Sjuswialels |eloueuly asay} Jo Jed |esbajul ue ase sajou BuiAuedwodoe ay] ,

Financial Section

-0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0 $ -0- $ TESX JO pUT "UORISOd 1oN

0- 0- -0- -0- -0- -0- Jea A o buluuibag ‘uonisod 1oN

-0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- UOHISOJ N Ul 8bUeyd
292°€S ¥62 0E 85626 £8€°9C 82181 S06'65€ sesuadx3 Bunesedo [ejol

- Z - - - - sosuadxg Bupesadp [etsuas) DNL

- - Sve'LL - 228 - SJequis|\| O} UOHEIO|Y
- - - - - - sesusadxg @ouenss| Jo 1S0D
0sz'L - 0S.'vL - 0sz‘L 0sc'L sesuadx3 J8yi0
662 €0l L#0°9 172 €0e 615 074 - 884 uonessiuiwpy welbold
€LLLS L6L‘0e 226016 60€°9C cov'vLL 901 ‘8G¢ asuadx3 jseJsiu|

S3SN3IdX3d ONILV™IdO

292°eS ¥62°0€ 8G6°CI6 €8¢°9¢ 8//°181 G06°65€ senuanay buneltsdo [ejo1

€96°L L6v'L - - - - SJaquig|/ O} uoneoo|y

0S - 9z/LL - €28‘s 261 sBulule] Juswisanu|

6v2‘lS $ €088z $ cez'see $ ¢€8¢c'oe $ GG6'GLL $ €LL'6SE $ SjuswissInquiisy
JoquIs)\ PUE }S8Jsju| UBo
SINNIATYH ONILVHIdO

cd%l-d a4a0L0¢ aogv yog bny 18 d000c VY0002
110Z seles seles 0102 seles 600Z seles seles seles

0202 ‘0€ 4oquiajdag papug Jesp ay3 104
NOILISOd L3N NI SIONVHO

ANV S3SN3IdX3 ‘SINNIATY JO SLNINILVLS«
1ouno9 ueoT [edidiuniy eplioj4

C
.0
‘0

O
o
s}

()
Z
£

n

()

(@)

C

O
c
@)
©

C

O

n

Q

n

C

()

o

X
L

")

()

o]

(e

()

>

)
xx
(T

(@]

0
s}

C

()

&

Q
s}

O
s}
wn




"SjuswWalels |eloueuly a8say} Jo Jed |esbajul ue ase sajou Bulkuedwoodoe ay] ,

-0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ 185X JO pug "UORISOd 19N

-0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 183X Jo buluUibeg Uonsod 1oN

-0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- UORISOd 9N Ul ebuey)
ZL e 122892 S¥9'929 0£628. GE8'09E'L 0187/2z¢C sesuadx3 Bunesado [ejoL

- - - - - - sosuadxg Bunesadp jessuan) HNL

618‘9¢ 9G0°.L. wwe'll Gee'e6 L¥2°102 - SJaquis| O} UoReoo|y
- - - - - - sosuadx3 aouenss| Jo S0
0Sc‘L G/l 000°L L 00S°C ¥Se‘L 0Sc‘L sosuadx3 JoUl0
€22 6€0°C S¥G‘9 €9L‘G Y619 9/2°L 074 - 994 uopessiuiwpy weiboid
9./.'€8¢ 161681 968°LES Z2r0‘e89 orZLSL L ¥8.812°C asuadx3 jsausu|

S3SN3IdX3 ONILVIIdO

2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Zll'vie 122892 G¥9°929 06282 GE809E’L olL8'2zze senuanay BupessdQ |ejol
- - - - - ¥80°8L Slaquis\ 0} uoieoo|y
08¢ GLGL (A" 061 ‘6% 919 28yl sBuluies juswisenu]
zes'‘ele $ 90c¢°.9¢ $ 2l1°Ge9 $ ovi'eel $ 68L09¢°L $ vvz'80ce $ sjuswssINquIISy
JaquIs)\ pue Jselsju| ueon
S3INN3IATIYH ONILVHIdO
v8L0c a/.10¢ 9L0¢ cavlL-g vcZlLoc aLioc
seleg seleg seleg Z10Z seues seleg salleg

(panunuod)
0202 ‘0€ J2quia)dag papug Jeaj ay} Jod
NOILISOd L3N NI SIONVHD

ANV S3SN3IdX3 ‘SINNIATY 40 SLNINILVLS-
1ouno) ueoT jeddiUny epLIO|4

(e
.0
=

0

O
o
s

()
s
£

n

()

(@)}

C

O
C
@)
O

C

O

n

()

0

(e

()

o

X
LU

)

()

)

(@

()

>

()
¥
G

o

n
s}

C

()

=

()
e}

O
e}
n

32




C
i)
')

O

)
)
ke

O

C

O
£
T

"Sjuswalels |eloueuly asay} Jo Jed |esbajul ue ase sajou Bulkuedwoodoe ay] ,

GcL'86l $ -0- GcL'86l $ -0- $ -0-
L2 v8L -0- LvZ'v8L -0- -0-
8yl -0- 114" -0- -0-
9e0‘LY.L'g GS6'vS z66°C2l 96.°€LS 099°€1L8
908°cLL - 908°cLL - -
ovL'LEL ocl - - zev'eee
19z°0ve - - 19z°0ve -
29eLY 00S'¥ - - €es
¥59°2S 62¢€ 98L‘6 9162 000°¢
£02°19G°2 000°0S - €1L0°Lee G6E'0LS
025'6S.'8 GS6 'S 9Lv'/€EL 96.°€.LS 099°cl8
61L2°/61 - - 189G/ -
9z9°Z6C a8 - S6S 79 695671
G19'69Z'8 $ 0.8%S 9/v'/€L $ oezoeee $ 160799
[EjoL spund suopeladO g6102 V6102
._O.—N_)TCOZ |elaua) salleg Salles

0202 ‘0 Joqwialdag papus Jeap ay} o4

ANV S3aSN3IAdX3 ‘SINNIATY 40 SININILVIS:

(Panug3uo))
NOILISOd 13N NI SIONVHO

[Iouno)H ueo-] jedidiunyy epLio|4

TES A JO puT 'UOHISOd 1oN

Jes A JO buluuibag ‘uonisod JoN

uonisod JoN Ul ebuey)
sasuadx3 Bunesadp |e101

sosuadx3 Bunesadp |elouas DN
slaquial O} uoneoo|y

sasuadx3 aouenss| Jo 1s0)
sasuadx3 Jayl0

D74 - 994 uonessiuiwpy welbold
osuadx3 }saJsu|

S3ISN3IdX3 ONILVHIdO

sanuanay Bunesadp |ejo]

sJaquuaj\ O] UoNeoo|y
sBululeq juswisenu|
SjusWasINquIIsy
JaquUs| pue 1seJsiu] ueon
S3INN3IAIYH ONILVHIdO

33




‘Sjuswiale)s |eloueul 8say} Jo ped |eibajul ue ale sajou bBulAuedwodoe ay] ,

999°61 1 $ - $ /60°¢60°L $ - $ - $ 2/5°025°L $ sonnpoy bBugessdo Aq (pesn) pepnold ysed
(021°1) - (8c1°0€2) - - 9/ 1oN - se|qeed ul (eses.09Q) asea.ou|
- - - - - - wwwcwaxw_ U_NQO._n_ ul esealdag Awwmm._oc_v
G£0‘89 - S6v°LLE - (085°g891L) 68°191L°L 18N - S8|qeAIs08Y Ul osesuoa( (esealou])
(09) - (9z2°21) - (cz8'g) (z61) BWODU| JUBLUISBAU|
/88°0G - 101°1G6 - L - pled 1salep|
- - - - - - SPa920.d WOl pajdN S)S0) 9ouenss| ..H.
- - - - 20v'vLL 901 ‘8G¢E spuog uopeloa.iddy [eyded uo 1salsiu| JO U100y (@)
- - - - - - Buipunjay Jo uonezniowy (OR
$96°L - 65.'G - - - (wniwa.d) Junodsiq Jo uonezipiowy Dam
"SeRAloY bunelsdo Aq (pesn) pepnoid —
yse) O} UORISOd 19N Ul 8buey) jJO UORe|Iouodsy .w
-0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ UORISOd JoN Ul 9bUeu) 2
'SeNAROY buneiad) woly SMOH ysed O
C
€29'96 $ - $ 01L9°28S°L $ - $ - $ 610°C $ Jes A JO pu3 ‘sjus[eAinb3 ysed pue ysed L
¥6.°26 - 016220 - - S8zl Jes X Jo buluuibag SJUS[AINbT USe) pue Used w
C
628'c - (006'v8Y°L) - - 9/ SjUS[eAINbT yseD pue yse) Ul abuey) 1oN M
0S - 9zl LL - L z61 sepnpoy bBuseau| Aq (pesn) pepnold yseo w
0S - 9zL L - L z61 pe}o8||00 SpUBpIAIQ PUE Jsalsiu| 0
‘SONANOY Uc_uwm>c_ wiold} smo|4 yse)d m
(288'GLL) - (£22'G66°2) - (1) (000°025°L) sonnpoy Buloueuld [eyded-uoN Aq (pesn) pepmnoid used .om
(£88°05) - (202°256) - () - pled 1saie| o
(000°69) (910'8€9°1) - (000°025°L) spuog jo uopdwapay €
- - - - panss| spuog woJ} spead0.d o)
‘SOIlIADY Dbuldueuld [ejlde)-UON Wol} SMO|{ yse) C
999°6L1 - 160°€60°L - - z.5'025°L sepnpoy bupesedo Aq (pesn) pepnold yseo mw_
(2222) - (81°01) - (092°2) (91€2) pred sesuadx3 @]
V6°LG - G/2'€9/ - 09Z°C 888°C SjusWasINqIIY GBI\ PUB ISalsju| Ueo] N
000°0Z - 000°0LE - - 000°02G°} sjuewAedey ueoT Jequisiy
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ SISQWISIN O) SPEN SUEOT]
SeNAOY buneiad) woly SMOj4 ysed
z-9%1-9 990102 aoav yog bny 1S 90002 V0002
11L0Z seues SEIETS 010z seues 6002 Seleg soles soleg

0202 ‘0€ 42qwiajdag papug Jesp ayj 104
SMOT4 HSVD 40 SLINIWILVLS-
19uno) ueo- jedidiUny eplioj4

n
S
o
LL
c
n
O
O
g
o
n
s}
C
()
£
()
e}
O
)
wn

34




(-

.0 %
s

% "Sjuswalels |eloueuly asay} Jo Jed |esbajul ue ase sajou Bulkuedwoodoe ayy ,
wn

O

‘O S/Z°06Y $ 9/8'629 $ G/025€C $ 6LY'SSST $ 612'660°C $ 968'€0£'C $ sopnpoy bBugesedo Aq (pesn) pepnold ysed

C (0£82) (069°01) (zs1've) (651 2¢€) (or1'9¢) (z25'92) 18N - se|qehed ul (esesioe(q) aseatou|

G - - - - Y01 - wmwcmaxm_ U_NQO._n_ ul esealda( Amwmm._oc_v

£ 678902 0€9°Shy vvzzesL 9zz'TT6'L 000°'G¥6°L 916°980°L 19N - So|qeAIOaY Ul @sealoa( (esealou|)

LL (082) (G1G°1) (€2t°1) (061 ‘6%) (9v9) (zst'1L) 3WOOU| JUBW}SaAU|

A AAR 18v°2/2 10LZ¥9 8L1'85. LL9'g8e L 056922 pled 1sala|

- - - - - - SPa920.1d W04} PaeN SISO 9oUenss|

- - - - - - spuog uojerda.iddy |ejded uo }selsju| JO UONBIddY

- bz (z2v'2) 96E'vE (82.'v) - Buipunjey Jo uopeziIowy

(6¥8'92) (sze'vl) (€22v2) (z22'82) (z10°261) #80°81L (wnjwe.d) Junoosiq jo uoneziiowy
‘SelAROY bunerado Aq (pasn) pepnoid

(Se) O} UORISOd }9N Ul 8buey) JO UORE]|IoU0ISY

-0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ uonisod 18N ur sbueyd

'SaAROY buneiad) woly SMO[4 ysed

06Z°0v€ $ 6£9°€L9 $ 09v'120C $ 6651702°C $ 191 $ 0956122 $ Jes X JO pug SJUSeAINbT USED pue ysed
091°€0€ GE.709 €19°0¥0C 96/°9/1°C 106C ZELL6LT Jes\ Jo buluuibag SjuseAnbg yseD pue 4sed
oL /€ ¥06°8 1¥8°0€ £¥8°'/2 (9v2°2) 8Zv'8C Sjus[eAInbg ysed pue (sed Ul sbuey) 1eN
082 GLG'L eVl Zrs 9v9 z8v'L sennpoy Bunsanu| Aq (pesn) pepnold ysed
082 G1G°L €Yl Zr8 9v9 z8v'lL Pe}o8ll00 SPUBPIAIQ PUE JsaJsiu|
SO0y BunssAu| woly SMOj{ yse)
(szv'esy) (28¥°229) (102°22€2) (81¥'825°2) (119860°€) (056°9/2°€) sennpoy Buroueul [epded-uoN Ag (pesn) pepmnold ysed
(szv'ele) (28v°2.2) (102°219) (81¥°8G2) (119'88€L) (0s6°'922°2) pred isese|
(o00‘0tL) (000°05€) (000°089°L) (000°022°L) (000°0L2°L) (000°050°L) spuog jo uondwiepey

- panss| spuog wolj spesdoid
SN0y buroueul] [eyildeD-UON WO} SMOlJ Use)

G206V 9/8'629 G102s€‘C 6l1¥'G55°C 612'560°C 968°'€0€‘C sepnpoy bBugessdo Aq (pesn) pepnold ysed
(522'8) (099°01) (29¢¢e) (69¢°02) (18e'c2) (16¥'22) pred sesuadx3
0S0°'6LE 9e6°'6/2 vy or9 88/'Gv/ 009°80%‘1L 18€'9z2'e sjuslussINqUIIsY JaquIS)\ pue jsalaju| ueoT
000°08} 000°G9¢€ 000°GYL L 000°0€8°L 000°0LL°L 000°GOL ‘L suswAeday ueo Jequisiy
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ SIOQUISI O} SPEIN SUEOT
‘SeNIAlDY buneiad) Woij SMOjJ USeD
Vv8L0C da/.10¢ 9lL0¢ cav L9 N4 atioc
seles saleg saleg 21L0Z seues seles seles

(panur3uod)
020z ‘0¢ 19qua3dag papug JesA sy} 1o
SMOT4 HSVD 40 SINIWILVLS.
IDUNo)H ueoT _NQ_O_C—.__)_ epLoj4




"Sjuswale)s [eloueUl asay) Jo Wed [eibajul ue ale sajou Bulkuedwoooe sy ,

v1G'ze0el  $ lel'eT $ /¥8°29 $ (8¥8'v9z'e) $ €8Z°LS $ sepnpoy Bunesado Ag (pesn) pepnold ysed

(6¥9°ct¥) (9v5'92) 8SY' v 05991 (711°502) 1oN - se|qehed ul (esea109() oses.ou|
(1) - - - (VAR sosuadxg pledald ul asealoaq (esealou|)
678798t (zerr) 506°cZ (#%9°999°¢) (686°95¢) 18N - S8|qeA1e08y Ul 8sealds( (esealou|)
(929°262) (s8) - (565°79) (695°671) SWODU| JusLWSaAU|
99/°GeL'L 610°LS - (el WA ¥1.'GS8 pled jsalau|
G68°LLL - - G68°LLL - SPa920.d W01} PansN SISO aouenss|
806°2ES - - - - spuog uoneloaiddy |ejided uo }salsju| JO UOaIOdY
G8Y'se - - - - Buipunjay jo uopezpiowy
(588°G1S) (6L1) - - (zve‘o6) (wnmweud) Junoosiq Jo uoneziowy

SO0y Bueiado Aq (Pasn) PopRoId

(SB) 0} UORISOd JON Ul 8buey) jo uoie

Iciad $ -0- $ v8v'vl $ -0- $ -0- $ UORISOd 18N ul 8bueyd
"SeNIAOY buneiad) WOl SMojJ Use)

L/9'0L€'0e  $ 8 $ 6266l $ v./20L6'S $ 6LL'G90GL $ Jes X JO pug 'SJUSEAINbT SED puB UseD
oll'gesoz 508°C. Zev'ocL - 186°628°G1L Jes X JO buluuIbsg SJUS[EAINbT USeD pue Used
196'G8.‘C (2162'22) /¥8°29 v/2°01L6'G (298'v92) SjUS[eAINbT UseD pue ysed Ul sbuey) 1N
95'8€T S8 - S6579 695611 sonnpoy Bunseu| Ag (pesn) pepnold Uysed
95¥'8eT G8 - G659 69G 671 Pe109]|0D SpPUSPIQ pue isaJsiu|
'SOIARDY BUlSSAU| WO} SMO|H Uyse)
(60%'581'8) (610'96) - 1250L1'6 (12°G96) sennpoy Buroueuly eyded-uoN Aq (pesn) pepinold yseo

(992°5€2°2) (610°19) - (9v8°212) (#12°658) pred iseJssu|

2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

(910820°01) (000'st) - (000°0L 1) spuog jo uopdwapay
£/£°92€'6 - - €/£'82¢'6 - penss| spuog wouj speado.id
'SeRAROY Buroueul] [ejide)-UON Wolj SMOj USeD
Y1620 lEL'€T /%829 (8¥8°v92Z'€) £8Z°1S sennpoy Bunesado Aq (pesn) pepnold ysed
(Lov'oLy) (z61°9) (Pe5'86) (p22°cL1) (28¢°12) pred sesuadx3
8G9'6LL L 62562 18E‘191 z9e‘eze L1698 sjusWIasINqUISY JaquIs|\ pue Jsaiai| ueoT
000°G00°6 - - - 0000k} sjuswAeday UeOT JaqUIB
(£89°182'1) $ - $ - $ (9g6'vie'e) ¢ (L2'906) $ Slaquis|\ 0} Spejy SueoT
'SaIARdY buneiad) wol) Smoj4 ysed
|e10L spuny suopesado g6L02 V6102
‘_O_m_\/_-COZ |eJausn) saleg SEIREIN

(panunuod)
0202 ‘0€ 1aquidjdag papu3 Jesj ay) Jo4
SMOTd HSVD 40 SLNINILVLS:
J19uno) ueo- jedidiUnp epLioj4

0
2
o
LL
c
0
O
O
G
(o]
0
s
C
()
£
()
P
O
P
wn

36




Statements of Cash Flows Financial Section

Florida Municipal Loan Council
*STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH TRANSACTIONS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

Series 2000B - The increase in the fair value of the investments was $5,822.

Series 2009 St. Augustine Bch - Loans receivable and bonds payable of $39,046 were reduced by a
direct payment from the member to the lender. Interest of $26,833 was paid by the member directly to
the lender. The member paid administrative fees of $249 directly to the administrator.

Series 2010BB - Loans receivable and bonds payable of $65,000 were reduced by a direct payment from
the member to the lender. Interest of $30,000 was paid by the member directly to the lender. The
member paid administrative fees of $376 directly to the administrator.

Series 2012 B-1 & B-2 - The increase in the fair value of the investments was $48,348.

*The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Florida Municipal Loan Council
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

Note 1 — Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

A. Organization and Purpose - The Florida Municipal Loan Council (Council) was created on

December 1, 1998 under Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, pursuant to an Interlocal
Agreement between its members. The purpose of the Council is to enable participating
governmental entities to finance or refinance projects permitted by the Interlocal Act on a
cooperative and cost-effective basis, to benefit from economies of scale associated with
large scale financings and to maximize the benefits derived from the availability of moneys
provided by the State for funding projects. The Council is authorized to exercise the
privileges, benefits, powers and terms of the Interlocal Act in connection with the
authorization, issuance and sale of bonds. On December 17, 1998, the Board of Directors
approved a resolution authorizing the issuance of bonds up to an aggregate amount of
$500,000,000. On October 23, 2002, the Board of Directors approved a resolution
authorizing the issuance of bonds in an additional aggregate amount up to $750,000,000.

The Council is authorized to issue commercial paper notes, providing that the aggregate
principal amount of the commercial paper outstanding at any one time shall not exceed
$200,000,000. As of September 30, 2020, there is no commercial paper outstanding.

On November 17, 2006, the Board of Directors approved a resolution authorizing the
issuance of bonds to finance the cost of supplies of natural gas for agencies within and
without the state of Florida, providing that the aggregate amount of the principal
outstanding at any one time does not exceed $2,000,000,000. As of September 30, 2020,
no gas bonds have been issued.

On April 3, 2008, the Board of Directors approved a resolution authorizing the issuance of
private placement bonds and appointed Banc of America Public Capital Corp as the bank
for the private placement program. On December 1, 2008, the Board of Directors approved
a resolution appointing Branch Banking & Trust Company as a participating bank for the
private placement program and authorized the Program Administrator to designate
additional banks to provide financing for each loan. The Program Administrator
subsequently appointed Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (formerly Wachovia Bank, National
Association) as a participating bank for the private placement program.

On July 2, 2012, the Board of Directors approved Amendment 2 to the Interlocal
Agreement authorizing the issuance of infrastructure revenue bonds. In addition, the Board
approved resolutions authorizing the issuance of FMLC Infrastructure Improvement
Revenue Bonds, Series 2012, up to an aggregate amount of $180,000,000.

On May 29, 2013, the Board amended and restated Amendment 2 to the Interlocal

Agreement to clarify the authority of the Council under the provisions of Chapter 163,
Florida Statutes.
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Florida Municipal Loan Council
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

Note 1 — Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

A. Organization and Purpose (Continued)
The Council had the following programs during the year ended September 30, 2020:

Series 2000A - This program was financed with revenue bonds in the amount of
$30,878,847 issued May 3, 2000 with a final maturity of April 1, 2030. On July 12, 2005,
the Council issued $15,610,000 in revenue refunding bonds to advance refund certain
2000A revenue bonds. The 2000A current interest bonds were called April 1, 2010.
Capital appreciation bonds with a final maturity of April 1, 2024 are still outstanding. The
remaining participant is Deerfield Beach.

Series 2000B - This program was financed with revenue bonds in the amount of
$42,845,184 issued November 15, 2000 with a final maturity of November 1, 2030. In a
prior fiscal year, Marco Island, New Smyrna Beach, North Miami Beach, and Oakland Park
provided funds to extinguish their share of the bonds, and the Council issued $34,860,000
in revenue refunding bonds to advance refund certain 2000B revenue bonds. Capital
appreciation bonds with a final maturity of November 1, 2026 are still outstanding. The
remaining participant is Deerfield Beach.

Series 2006 - This program was financed with revenue bonds in the amount of $22,365,000
issued January 9, 2007 with a final maturity of October 1, 2036. In a prior fiscal year, the
Council issued $24,520,000 in revenue refunding bonds to advance refund certain 2006
revenue bonds, Gadsden County and Deerfield Beach provided funds to extinguish their
share of the bonds, and South Miami provided funds to extinguish a portion of its share of
the bonds. In the current fiscal year, South Miami provided funds to extinguish their share
of the bonds. The remaining participant was South Miami.

Series 2009 St. Augustine Beach - This program was financed with private placement
revenue bonds in the amount of $5,350,000 issued July 2, 2009 with a final maturity of July
1, 2029. The participant is St. Augustine Beach.

Series 2010 ABCD - This program was financed with revenue bonds in the amount of
$27,730,000 issued August 25, 2010 with a final maturity of October 1, 2040. In the current
fiscal year, Palatka, Valparaiso, and West Melbourne provided funds to extinguish their
share of the bonds. The remaining participant is Palmetto Bay.

Series 2010BB - This program was financed with private placement revenue bonds in the
amount of $1,230,000 issued December 20, 2010 with a final maturity of April 1, 2029.
These bonds were issued to advance refund certain bonds of Series 1999A. The
participant is Eagle Lake.

Series 2011 B-1 & B-2 - This program was financed with revenue bonds in the amount of
$5,825,000 issued March 2, 2011 with a final maturity of October 1, 2030. A portion of
these bonds was issued to advance refund certain bonds of Series 1999A. In a prior fiscal
year, Pinecrest provided funds to extinguish a portion of its share of the bonds. The
participant is Pinecrest.

Series 2011D - This program was financed with revenue bonds in the amount of

$48,235,000 issued May 20, 2011 with a final maturity of October 1, 2041. The participant
is Hialeah.
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Florida Municipal Loan Council
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

Note 1 — Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
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A. Organization and Purpose (Continued)

Series 2012A - This program was financed with revenue bonds in the amount of
$41,620,000 issued November 1, 2012 with a final maturity of May 1, 2033. A portion of
these bonds was issued to advance refund certain bonds of Series 2003A. The participant
is Hialeah.

Series 2012 B-1 & B-2 - This program was financed with revenue bonds in the amount of
$34,860,000 issued December 1, 2012 with a final maturity of October 1, 2032. A portion
of these bonds were issued to advance refund certain bonds of Series 2000B, 2003A, and
2003B. The participant is Deerfield Beach.

Series 2016 - This program was financed with revenue bonds in the amount of $24,520,000
issued September 29, 2016 with a final maturity of October 1, 2046. A portion of these
bonds was issued to advance refund certain bonds of Series 2001A, 2002A, 2003A,
2003B, 2004A-1, 2005A, 2005B, 2005C, 2005D, 2006, and 2010AA. The participants are
Bay Harbor Islands, Belle Isle, Eatonville, Lake Park, North Miami, Oakland, Port Richey,
St. Augustine Beach, and Valparaiso.

Series 2017B - This program was financed with revenue bonds in the amount of
$6,790,000 issued September 28, 2017 with a final maturity of October 1, 2037. A portion
of these bonds was issued to advance refund certain bonds of Series 2005B. The
participants are Cocoa Beach CRA, Melbourne Beach, and Valparaiso.

Series 2018A - This program was financed with revenue bonds in the amount of
$7,595,000 issued August 23, 2018 with a final maturity of October 1, 2043. The
participant is Bradenton.

Series 2019A - This program was financed with revenue bonds in the amount of
$16,500,000 issued April 18, 2019 with a final maturity of August 1, 2048. The participant
is Lighthouse Point.

Series 2019B - This program was financed with revenue bonds in the amount of
$8,600,000 issued October 10, 2019 with a final maturity of December 1, 2049. The
participant is Auburndale.

The bond proceeds of each program were loaned to the participants of that program
pursuant to loan agreements with maturities that coincide with the principal and interest
payment dates of the bonds. Under the loan agreements, participants are billed for their
proportionate share of the program costs.

The Council obtained a financial guaranty insurance policy for each program, except for the
private placement bonds (Series 2009 St. Augustine Beach and Series 2010BB), Series
2011 B-2, Series 2012 B-2, Series 2018A, and Series 2019A bonds, that guarantees the
scheduled payment of principal and interest when due.

The Council is exempt from income taxes under the provisions of Section 115 of the
Internal Revenue Code.
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Florida Municipal Loan Council
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

Note 1 — Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C. Reporting Entity and Basis of Accounting - The Council is an independent reporting entity
accounted for as an enterprise fund under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
for governments as established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB). The Council uses the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded at the time the liabilities are incurred. The programs reported as
separate columns in the Council’s financial statements are considered major funds. The
programs that were fully defeased or paid by year-end are aggregated and reported as
non-major funds.

D. Pursuant to the trust indentures, all earnings are credited to and all expenses are
reimbursed by the members. The Council considers all its activities as operating activities.

E. Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents include short-term investments
with original maturities of three months or less.

F. Investments — Investments are reported at fair value and transactions are recorded on a
trade date basis. Interest income is recognized on the accrual basis. Fair value increases
and decreases include both realized gains and losses and the change in unrealized gains
and losses during the period.

G. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources — The Council classifies deferred loss on debt
refunding as a deferred outflow of resources and deferred gain on debt refunding as a
deferred inflow of resources in a separate section of the statement of net position. A
deferred gain or loss results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and
its reacquisition price. The gain or loss is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the
remaining life of the refunded (old) debt or the refunding (new) debt.

Note 2 — Funds and Accounts Created by the Trust Indentures

A. Bond Program Funds and Accounts - Pursuant to Article IV of the trust indentures between
the Council and The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, as Trustee (Trustee), the following
funds and accounts were created.

1. Project Loan Funds - The Project Loan Funds are created with deposits of the net bond
proceeds for lending to the members. Moneys in the Project Loan Funds are
segregated at closing into a separate account for each member. Earnings on the
investment of these funds are credited to and held in each account. The proceeds and
any earnings thereon are available to fund the projects of the members. Amounts on
deposit in the Project Loan Funds are not subject to yield restriction for an initial period
of up to three years. It is expected that the members will withdraw these funds within
the initial period.

2. Cost of Issuance Funds - The Cost of Issuance Funds are created with deposits at
closing to pay certain costs related to the issuance of the bonds. Amounts remaining in
these funds after payment of these costs, together with any investment earnings, are
transferred to the Revenue Funds in accordance with the trust indentures.
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Florida Municipal Loan Council
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

Note 2 — Funds and Accounts Created by the Trust Indentures (Continued)

3.

Principal Funds - All payments or recoveries of principal of loans or payments of any
premium due upon optional redemption of the bonds are deposited to the Principal
Funds. Amounts in the Principal Funds are used to pay principal payments on the
bonds.

Revenue Funds - All loan repayments, other than those amounts required to be
deposited to the Principal Funds, plus all investment earnings on amounts in the funds
and accounts (except the Rebate Funds and the Project Loan Funds) are deposited to
the Revenue Funds. Amounts in the Revenue Funds are used to pay the interest due
on the bonds and the fees and expenses of the Council.

Reserve Funds - The Reserve Funds are established at closing with cash or the
purchase of surety bonds in an amount equal to the reserve requirement of the
program. Amounts held in each reserve fund are payable to the Trustee on any
interest payment or redemption date on which a deficiency exists which cannot be
cured by funds in any other fund or account held pursuant to the indentures and
available for such purpose. If disbursement is made from a surety bond, the Council
will reinstate the maximum limits of the surety bond as soon as moneys are available
from the borrower by repaying the amount disbursed with interest thereon at the rate
set forth in the agreement. If a withdrawal is made from a cash reserve fund, the
Council will replenish the applicable reserve requirement within twelve months with an
amount received from the borrower.

B. Private Placement Program — The private placement program is a non-trusteed program.
The loan agreements do not require the establishment of funds and accounts by the
Council. Additionally, pursuant to Article V of the loan agreements, the borrowers shall pay
all loan repayments on behalf of the Council to the lenders.

C.

Rebate Funds - In order to ensure compliance with the rebate provisions of Section 148(f)
of the Internal Revenue Code, the Council also provided for the Rebate Funds. The
Rebate Funds are only maintained if it becomes necessary to rebate arbitrage earnings to
the federal government.
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Florida Municipal Loan Council
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

Note 3 — Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

All cash, cash equivalents and investments are held by the Trustee or its agent in the Council's
name, except for the general operations account. At September 30, 2020, unrestricted cash
was composed of demand deposits in the amount of $199,279. Restricted cash and cash
equivalents in the amount of $30,111,392 and restricted investments in the amount of
$2,429,810 are held by the Trustee and restricted as to use pursuant to the trust indentures.
The restricted cash and cash equivalents include cash accounts and a money market fund held
by the Trustee. The fund is rated AAA and has a weighted average maturity (WAM) of 47 days
at year-end. The cash is held within a trust department of a bank, which under Florida
Statutes, Chapter 280, public deposits in a bank or savings association held by a trust
department are fully secured under trust business laws. All demand deposits with financial
institutions were 100% insured by Federal Depository Insurance Corporation. Details of
investments held at September 30, 2020 are shown below:

Series Series
2000B 2012 B-1 & B-2
Investments
Florida Municipal Investment Trust
(FMIVT) 0-2 Yr High Quality Bd Fd $ 261,150 $ 2,168,660
Total Investments $ 261,150 $ 2,168,660

The FMIVT 0-2 Year High Quality Bond Fund is a local government investment pool
administered by the Florida League of Cities, Inc. (League). The FMIVT Board of Trustees
exercises oversight responsibility over the pool. The fair value of the Council’s position in the
pool is equal to the fair value of the Council's shares.

The Project Loan Funds are invested in the FMIVT 0-2 Year High Quality Bond Fund and the
money market fund. The investments authorized by the trust indentures include direct
obligations of the United States of America, evidence of ownership of a proportionate interest in
obligations of the federal government, interest bearing demand or time deposits which are fully
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or fully collateralized by obligations of
the federal government, certain investment agreements or repurchase agreements, the FMIVT
0-2 Year High Quality Bond Fund, the FMIVT 1-3 Year High Quality Bond Fund, money market
funds and the State Board of Administration's Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund
(Florida Prime). The Council places no limit on the amount that may be invested in any one
fund.

Credit Risk: The Council’s investment policy is to apply the prudent-person rule. The
investment portfolio shall be designed to attain a market rate of return throughout financial and
economic cycles, taking into account the Council’s investment risk constraints as discussed in
the investment policy. The Council’s credit quality policy does not limit its investments in
government agency obligations or bond funds. The FMIvT 0-2 Year High Quality Bond Fund is
rated AAA.

Interest Rate Risk: As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses from rising interest
rates, the Council’s investment policy employs portfolio diversification, controlled duration
strategies, and maturity durations as the primary methods of controlling risk. The Council’s
investment policy does not limit the duration of governmental investment funds. The FMIvT 0-2
Year High Quality Bond Fund has a modified duration of 0.65 years at year-end.
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Florida Municipal Loan Council
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

Note 3 — Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

Fair Value Measurement: GASB Statement 72 (GASB 72), Fair Value Measurement and
Application, defines fair values as the price the Council would receive upon selling the
investment in an orderly transaction to an independent buyer in the principal market for the
investment. GASB 72 also establishes a three-tier hierarchy of inputs to valuation techniques
used to measure fair value and requires the Council to categorize its fair value measurements
within that hierarchy. The three-tier hierarchy of inputs is summarized in the three broad levels
listed below:

Level 1 includes unadjusted quoted prices for identical investments in active markets.

Level 2 includes other significant observable inputs such as quoted prices for similar
investments, quoted prices in inactive markets, adjusted quoted prices in active markets
and other market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 includes significant unobservable inputs, which are used only when relevant
Level 1 and Level 2 inputs are unavailable.

The FMIVT 0-2 Year High Quality Bond Fund is valued at the net asset value provided by
FMIVT, which is based on the values of the underlying assets of the fund. The value of the
FMIVT 0-2 Year High Quality Bond Fund is classified as Level 2 and was derived from market-
corroborated data. The FMIVT 0-2 Year High Quality Bond Fund invests in U.S. Treasury and
agency securities and asset-backed securities. The investment objective of the FMIVT 0-2
Year High Quality Bond Fund is to meet or exceed the return of its benchmark. Withdrawals
require a notice of five days and can be made on a semi-monthly basis.

Note 4 — Loans Receivable

The loans receivable are evidenced by loan agreements and are secured by each member's
covenant to budget a sufficient amount of non-ad valorem revenues to satisfy the loan
repayments as required under the loan agreement, or in the case of general obligation debt, by
the full faith and credit of the government. Members of the bond program are billed semi-
annually for their proportionate share of expenses, less investment earnings on funds other
than the Project Loan Funds. Members of the private placement program pay all loan
repayments on behalf of the Council directly to the lender. The loans issued through the
private placement program are subject to prepayment, with penalty. Principal repayments on
the loans are scheduled to coincide with the scheduled maturities of the bonds.

Note 5 — Bonds Payable

The bonds are limited and special obligations of the Council and are payable solely out of
amounts received by the Council under and pursuant to the loan agreements entered into by
the Council and each member.
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Florida Municipal Loan Council
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

Note 5 — Bonds Payable (Continued)

Bonds Payable decreased during the year ended September 30, 2020 as follows:

Bonds Payable October 1, 2019 $192,281,009
Bonds Issued 9,440,268
Accretion on Capital Appreciation Bonds 532,508
Bonds Redeemed (9,289,046)
Bonds Defeased or Extinguished (11,005,000)
Reduction of Bond Premium/Discount (Net) (490,325)
Bonds Payable September 30, 2020 $181,469,414
Series 2000A

The Series 2000A bonds are composed of capital appreciation bonds of $1,597,155 plus
accreted interest of $3,809,470. The bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 6.05% to
6.08%. Interest is payable only at maturity or earlier redemption. The accreted amount will
include both the original principal amount and interest compounded semi-annually on each
April 1 and October 1.

The following is a schedule of debt service requirements:

Maturities Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 437,061 $ 1,082,939 $ 1,520,000
2022 410,901 1,109,099 1,520,000
2023 386,232 1,133,768 1,520,000
2024 362,961 1,157,039 1,520,000
Totals $ 1,597,155 $ 4,482,845 $ 6,080,000
Series 2000B

The Series 2000B bonds are composed of capital appreciation bonds of $1,010,184 plus
accreted interest of $2,129,017. The bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 5.75% to
5.85%. Interest is payable only at maturity or earlier redemption. The accreted amount will
include both the original principal amount and interest compounded semi-annually on each
May 1 and November 1.
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Florida Municipal Loan Council
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

Note 5 — Bonds Payable (Continued)
Series 2000B (Continued)
The following is a schedule of debt service requirements:

Maturities Principal Interest Total

2021 $ - $ - $ -
2022 - - -
2023 - - -
2024 - .
2025 403,285 1,161,715 1,565,000

2026-2027 606,899 2,023,101 2,630,000

Totals $ 1,010,184 $ 3,184,816 $ 4,195,000

Series 2006

In the current year, the Council defeased $1,145,000 of the Series 2006 bonds by placing
proceeds received from the borrower in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service
payments on the bonds.

Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in
the Council’s financial statements. At September 30, 2020, $1,145,000 of bonds outstanding
are considered defeased.

Series 2009 St. Augustine Beach

These bonds bear interest at 5.37%. Interest is payable each January 1 and July 1 until final
maturity.

The following is a schedule of debt service requirements:

Maturities Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 41,144 $ 24,737 $ 65,881
2022 43,353 22,527 65,880
2023 45,681 20,199 65,880
2024 48,134 17,746 65,880
2025 50,719 15,161 65,880

2026-2029 231,617 31,907 263,524
Totals $ 460,648 $ 132,277 $ 592,925
Series 2010 ABCD

These bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 3.50% to 5.00%. Interest is payable each April
1 and October 1 until final maturity.
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Florida Municipal Loan Council
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

Note 5 — Bonds Payable (Continued)

Series 2010 ABCD (Continued)

The following is a schedule of debt service requirements:

Maturities Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 370,000 $ 513,563 $ 883,563
2022 385,000 498,463 883,463
2023 400,000 483,763 883,763
2024 410,000 469,588 879,588
2025 425,000 454,709 879,709

2026-2030 2,410,000 1,992,703 4,402,703

2031-2035 3,000,000 1,403,638 4,403,638

2036-2040 3,750,000 650,700 4,400,700
2041 855,000 21,375 876,375
Totals $ 12,005,000 $ 6,488,502 $ 18,493,502

In the current year, the Council defeased $9,860,000 of the Series 2010 ABCD bonds by
placing proceeds received from the borrower in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt
service payments on the bonds.

Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in
the Council’s financial statements. At September 30, 2020, $9,860,000 of bonds outstanding
are considered defeased.

Series 2010BB

These bonds bear interest at 4.00%. Interest is payable each April 1 and October 1 until final
maturity.

The following is a schedule of debt service requirements:

Maturities Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 65,000 $ 27,400 $ 92,400
2022 65,000 24,800 89,800
2023 70,000 22,200 92,200
2024 75,000 19,400 94,400
2025 75,000 16,400 91,400

2026-2029 335,000 34,200 369,200
Totals $ 685,000 $ 144,400 $ 829,400
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Florida Municipal Loan Council
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

Note 5 — Bonds Payable (Continued)

Series 2011 B-1 & B-2

These bonds bear interest at 5.00%. Interest is payable each April 1 and October 1 until final
maturity.

The following is a schedule of debt service requirements:

Maturities Principal Interest Total

2021 $ 70,000 $ 48,000 $ 118,000

2022 70,000 44,500 114,500

2023 75,000 40,875 115,875

2024 80,000 37,000 117,000

2025 85,000 32,875 117,875
2026-2030 500,000 93,750 593,750
2031 115,000 2,875 117,875
Totals $ 995,000 $ 299,875 $ 1,294,875

Series 2011D

These bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.50%. Interest is payable each April
1 and October 1 until final maturity.

The following is a schedule of debt service requirements:

Maturities Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 1,105,000 $ 2,178,600 $ 3,283,600
2022 1,150,000 2,133,500 3,283,500
2023 1,195,000 2,086,600 3,281,600
2024 1,245,000 2,036,244 3,281,244
2025 1,295,000 1,975,794 3,270,794

2026-2030 7,545,000 8,804,688 16,349,688
2031-2035 9,760,000 6,548,950 16,308,950
2036-2040 12,735,000 3,515,188 16,250,188
2041-2042 6,140,000 342,375 6,482,375
Totals $ 42,170,000 $ 29,621,939 $ 71,791,939
Series 2012A

These bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 3.25% to 5.00%. Interest is payable each May
1 and November 1 until final maturity.
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Florida Municipal Loan Council
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

Note 5 — Bonds Payable (Continued)
Series 2012A (Continued)

The following is a schedule of debt service requirements:

Maturities Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 1,795,000 $ 1,303,113 $ 3,098,113
2022 1,885,000 1,213,363 3,098,363
2023 1,980,000 1,119,113 3,099,113
2024 2,080,000 1,020,113 3,100,113
2025 2,180,000 916,113 3,096,113

2026-2030 12,290,000 3,209,625 15,499,625
2031-2033 8,600,000 697,000 9,297,000
Totals $ 30,810,000 $ 9,478,440 $ 40,288,440

Series 2012 B-1 & B-2

These bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 2.00% to 5.00%. Interest is payable each April
1 and October 1 until final maturity.

The following is a schedule of debt service requirements:

Maturities Principal Interest Total

2021 $ 1,830,000 $ 702,069 $ 2,532,069

2022 1,885,000 647,231 2,532,231

2023 1,950,000 587,481 2,537,481

2024 2,005,000 531,031 2,536,031

2025 2,025,000 470,544 2,495,544
2026-2030 12,065,000 1,049,888 13,114,888
2031-2033 1,365,000 70,116 1,435,116
Totals $ 23,125,000 $ 4,058,360 $ 27,183,360

Series 2016

These bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 2.00% to 5.00%. Interest is payable each April
1 and October 1 until final maturity.
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Florida Municipal Loan Council
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

Note 5 — Bonds Payable (Continued)
Series 2016 (Continued)

The following is a schedule of debt service requirements:

Maturities Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 1,745,000 $ 582,925 $ 2,327,925
2022 1,505,000 534,175 2,039,175
2023 1,540,000 480,800 2,020,800
2024 1,180,000 438,200 1,618,200
2025 1,220,000 414,200 1,634,200

2026-2030 5,785,000 1,645,738 7,430,738
2031-2035 5,735,000 565,975 6,300,975
2036-2040 450,000 102,425 552,425
2041-2045 325,000 50,619 375,619
2046-2047 145,000 4,794 149,794
Totals $ 19,630,000 $ 4,819,851 $ 24,449,851
Series 2017B

These bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.00%. Interest is payable each April
1 and October 1 until final maturity.

The following is a schedule of debt service requirements:

Maturities Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 365,000 $ 256,363 $ 621,363
2022 385,000 237,613 622,613
2023 405,000 217,863 622,863
2024 425,000 197,113 622,113
2025 445,000 175,363 620,363

2026-2030 2,550,000 520,788 3,070,788
2031-2035 1,225,000 112,534 1,337,534
2036-2038 300,000 16,041 316,041
Totals $ 6,100,000 $ 1,733,678 $ 7,833,678
Series 2018A

These bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.00%. Interest is payable each April
1 and October 1 until final maturity.
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Florida Municipal Loan Council
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

Note 5 — Bonds Payable (Continued)
Series 2018A (Continued)

The following is a schedule of debt service requirements:

Maturities Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 180,000 $ 307,025 $ 487,025
2022 190,000 299,625 489,625
2023 195,000 291,925 486,925
2024 205,000 282,900 487,900
2025 215,000 272,400 487,400

2026-2030 1,245,000 1,185,750 2,430,750
2031-2035 1,540,000 897,353 2,437,353
2036-2040 1,880,000 554,553 2,434,553
2041-2044 1,805,000 148,100 1,953,100
Totals $ 7,455,000 $ 4,239,631 $ 11,694,631
Series 2019A

These bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.00%. Interest is payable each
February 1 and August 1 until final maturity.

The following is a schedule of debt service requirements:

Maturities Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 305,000 $ 659,850 $ 964,850
2022 320,000 644,600 964,600
2023 335,000 628,600 963,600
2024 355,000 611,850 966,850
2025 370,000 594,100 964,100

2026-2030 2,155,000 2,673,000 4,828,000
2031-2035 2,680,000 2,136,475 4,816,475
2036-2040 3,200,000 1,637,738 4,837,738
2041-2045 3,930,000 920,938 4,850,938
2046-2048 2,740,000 179,888 2,919,888
Totals $ 16,390,000 $ 10,687,039 $ 27,077,039
Series 2019B

These bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.00%. Interest is payable each
June 1 and December 1 until final maturity.
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Florida Municipal Loan Council
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

Note 5 — Bonds Payable (Continued)
Series 2019B (Continued)

The following is a schedule of debt service requirements:

Maturities Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 140,000 $ 336,700 $ 476,700
2022 145,000 331,000 476,000
2023 155,000 325,000 480,000
2024 160,000 317,900 477,900
2025 170,000 309,650 479,650
2026-2030 975,000 1,410,125 2,385,125
2031-2035 1,245,000 1,144,625 2,389,625
2036-2040 1,525,000 863,300 2,388,300
2041-2045 1,865,000 525,300 2,390,300
2046-2050 2,220,000 170,250 2,390,250

Totals $ 8,600,000 $ 5,733,850 $ 14,333,850

Note 6 — Program Administration Fee

Pursuant to an administrative agreement, members are charged a program administration fee
of up to 10 basis points per annum on the bonds outstanding, plus additional fees upon
issuance of bonds or notes. Thirty percent of these fees are paid to the League, and the
remaining seventy percent is retained by the Council to fund its general operations.

Note 7 — Related Party Transactions

Pursuant to an administrative agreement as described in Note 6, the League administers the
Council’'s programs. Fees incurred under this agreement were $55,654, which includes cost of
issuance expenses in the amount of $3,000. At September 30, 2020, $30,706 was due to the
League.

The Florida Municipal Insurance Trust (FMIT) provides a reserve fund surety bond for the
Series 2000A program in the amount of $1,045,000. This surety bond is collateralized by cash
and investments held by the Trustee in the amount of the guarantee.

The President of the League appoints members to the Council’s Board of Directors. Certain
members of the Council’'s Board of Directors are also members of the League’s Board of
Directors.

The League also serves as administrator of FMIT and FMIvT. Certain members of FMIT’s and

FMIVT’s Board of Trustees are also members of the League’s Board of Directors and the
Council’s Board of Directors.
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Florida Municipal Loan Council
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

Note 8 — Arbitrage Rebates

The federal tax code requires state and local governments to rebate defined arbitrage earnings
on tax-exempt debt to the federal government every five years for as long as the bonds are
outstanding. These amounts are subject to adjustment for future arbitrage earnings or losses.
Actual amounts will not be determined until the end of each five-year period.

Note 9 — Surety Bonds

On September 6, 2007, MBIA Insurance Corporation issued its debt service reserve fund
surety bond (the "Existing Surety Bond") in connection with the Florida Municipal Loan Council
Revenue Bonds, Series 2001A, 2002A, 2003A, 2003B, 2004A-1, 2005A, 2005B, 2005C,
2005D, 2006, and 2007A (“Prior Bonds”). In connection with the issuance of the Council's
Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 (the "Series 2016 Bonds"), the
Existing Surety Bond was amended and reissued on September 29, 2016 (the "Current Surety
Bond"), by National Public Finance Guarantee Corporation. The Current Surety Bond funds
the respective reserve accounts in amounts required to satisfy the respective reserve
requirements of the Prior Bonds and the Series 2016 Bonds.

In connection with the issuance of the Council's Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds,
Series 2017B (the “Series 2017B Bonds”), a new surety bond (the “AGM Surety Bond”) was
issued on September 28, 2017, by Assured Guaranty Municipal Corp. (AGM). In connection
with the issuance of the Council’'s Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B (the “Series 2019B Bonds”),
the AGM Surety Bond was amended on October 10, 2019. The AGM Surety Bond, as
amended, funds the respective reserve accounts in amounts required to satisfy the respective
reserve requirements of the Series 2017B Bonds and the Series 2019B Bonds.

Note 10 — Capital Access Program

The Board of Directors passed a resolution authorizing the creation of both the Capital Access
Program (CAP) and the Competitive Capital Access Program (CCAP). Through both
programs, the Council will assist municipalities and other borrowers in obtaining long-term
financing through selected banks. The Council will charge a one-time fee of up to $15,000 to
borrowers under these programs.

Note 11 — Risks and Uncertainties

The current worldwide pandemic, caused by the novel coronavirus known as COVID-19, has
created widespread economic uncertainty. Management cannot estimate the economic
impact, if any, of this uncertainty on the condition of the Council. However, management does
not believe there will be a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Council as
reflected in these financial statements.

53—



Schedule of Issues Outstanding

Florida Municipal Loan Council
Schedule of Issues Outstanding
As of September 30, 2020

Original 9/30/20 Years
Par Amount of Bonds  Principal Outstanding Amortized

Revenue Bonds, Series 2000A - May 2000
Deerfield Beach $ 9,978,848 $ 1,597,155 25
TOTAL $ 9,978,848 $ 1,697,155

Revenue Bonds, Series 2000B - November 2000

Deerfield Beach $ 2,820,184 $ 1,010,184 27
TOTAL $ 2,820,184 $ 1,010,184

Revenue Bonds, Series 2009 St. Augustine Beach -

July 2009
St. Augustine Beach $ 5,350,000 $ 460,648 20
TOTAL $ 5,350,000 $ 460,648
Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 ABCD - August 2010
Palmetto Bay $ 14,780,000 $ 12,005,000 30
TOTAL $ 14,780,000 $ 12,005,000
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2010BB -

December 2010
Eagle Lake $ 1,230,000 $ 685,000 19
TOTAL $ 1,230,000 $ 685,000
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011 B-1 &

Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 B-2 - March 2011
Pinecrest B-2 $ 1,505,000 $ 995,000 19
TOTAL $ 1,505,000 $ 995,000
Revenue Bonds, Series 2011D - May 2011
Hialeah $ 48,235,000 $ 42,170,000 30
TOTAL $ 48,235,000 $ 42,170,000
Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds,

Series 2012A - November 2012
Hialeah $ 41,620,000 $ 30,810,000 20
TOTAL $ 41,620,000 $ 30,810,000

—{ 54 2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report



Financial Section

Florida Municipal Loan Council
Schedule of Issues Outstanding
As of September 30, 2020

Original 9/30/20 Years
Par Amount of Bonds Principal Outstanding Amortized

Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds,
Series 2012 B-1 & Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Series 2012 B-2 - December 2012

Deerfield Beach B-1 $ 20,090,000 $ 12,855,000 20
Deerfield Beach B-2 14,770,000 10,270,000 16
TOTAL $ 34,860,000 $ 23,125,000

Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds,
Series 2016 - September 2016

Bay Harbor Islands $ 3,085,000 $ 3,065,000 18
Belle Isle 935,000 685,000 10
Eatonville 850,000 685,000 14
Lake Park 3,660,000 3,140,000 17
North Miami 2,265,000 1,185,000 6
Oakland 1,845,000 1,560,000 16
Port Richey 3,055,000 2,370,000 19
St. Augustine Beach CBA 4,810,000 4,170,000 30
St. Augustine Beach GO 1,610,000 1,260,000 12
Valparaiso 2,405,000 1,510,000 10
TOTAL $ 24,520,000 $ 19,630,000

Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds,
Series 2017B - September 2017

Cocoa Beach CRA $ 4,245,000 $ 3,795,000 14
Melbourne Beach 1,050,000 910,000 12
Valparaiso 1,495,000 1,395,000 20
TOTAL $ 6,790,000 $ 6,100,000

Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A - August 2018
Bradenton $ 7,595,000 $ 7,455,000 25
TOTAL $ 7,595,000 $ 7,455,000

Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A - April 2019

Lighthouse Point $ 16,500,000 $ 16,390,000 29
TOTAL $ 16,500,000 $ 16,390,000

Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B - October 2019

Auburndale $ 8,600,000 $ 8,600,000 30
TOTAL $ 8,600,000 $ 8,600,000

TOTALS $ 224,384,032 $ 171,032,987
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STATISTICAL SECTION

The statistical section of the Council's Annual Report is intended to provide readers additional
information on economic conditions and financial trends. As previously mentioned, pursuant
to the Trust Indenture, members' earnings are credited to and all expenses are reimbursed by
the members. Prior to 2012, the Council's financial statements do not reflect net income or
net position. In 2012, the Council began reporting general operations that cover those items
necessary for the Council's operations not specifically related to a bond issue and include the
Board of Directors' meeting expense and travel, audit, insurance and other general operating
functions. The Council considers all its activities as operating activities. The schedules comply
with the requirements of GASB 44 by providing 10 years of data as applicable.

CONTENTS

57 Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand the
Council's financial performance and how it has changed over time.

58 Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the Council's
current levels of outstanding debt.

59 Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the Council's financial activities take place.
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Schedule of Ten Largest Borrowers by Amount Borrowed

Statistical Section

Florida Municipal Loan Council
Schedule of Ten Largest Borrowers by Amount Borrowed, periods ending September 30

FY2020

Borrower % of All Loans
City of Hialeah 18.4%
City of North Miami Beach 10.8%
City of Deerfield Beach 9.4%
Infrastructure Development Partners  5.5%
City of Haines City 3.9%
City of Hallandale Beach 3.6%
City of Bonita Springs 3.4%
City of Sunny Isles Beach 2.6%
Village of Pinecrest* 2.3%
City of Aventura 2.0%
TOTAL** 61.9%
FY2017

Borrower % of All Loans
City of Hialeah 19.0%
City of North Miami Beach 11%
City of Deerfield Beach 9.7%
Infrastructure Development Partners  5.7%
City of Haines City 4.0%
City of Hallandale Beach 3.7%
City of Bonita Springs 3.5%
City of Sunny Isles Beach 2.7%
Village of Pinecrest* 2.4%
City of Aventura 2.0%
TOTAL** 63.8%
FY2014

Borrower % of All Loans
City of Hialeah 19.6%
City of North Miami Beach 11.5%
City of Deerfield Beach 10.0%
Infrastructure Development Partners  5.9%
City of Haines City 41%
City of Hallandale Beach 3.8%
City of Bonita Springs 3.6%
City of Sunny Isles Beach 2.8%
Village of Pinecrest* 2.5%
City of Aventura 21%
TOTAL** 65.9%
FY2011

Borrower % of All Loans
City of Hialeah 17.8%
City of North Miami Beach 13.3%
City of Deerfield Beach 7.5%
City of Haines City 4.8%
City of Hallandale Beach 4.4%
City of Bonita Springs 4.2%
City of Sunny Isles Beach 3.2%
Village of Pinecrest* 2.8%
City of Aventura 2.4%
City of Oakland Park 2.3%
TOTAL** 62.7%

FY2019

Borrower % of All Loans
City of Hialeah 18.6%
City of North Miami Beach 10.9%
City of Deerfield Beach 9.5%
Infrastructure Development Partners  5.6%
City of Haines City 3.9%
City of Hallandale Beach 3.6%
City of Bonita Springs 3.4%
City of Sunny Isles Beach 2.6%
Village of Pinecrest* 2.3%
City of Aventura 2.0%
TOTAL** 62.4%
FY2016

Borrower % of All Loans
City of Hialeah 19.1%
City of North Miami Beach 1.2%
City of Deerfield Beach 9.7%
Infrastructure Development Partners  5.7%
City of Haines City 4.0%
City of Hallandale Beach 3.7%
City of Bonita Springs 3.5%
City of Sunny Isles Beach 2.7%
Village of Pinecrest* 2.4%
City of Aventura 2.0%
TOTAL** 64.0%
FY2013

Borrower % of All Loans
City of Hialeah 19.6%
City of North Miami Beach 1.5%
City of Deerfield Beach 10.0%
Infrastructure Development Partners  5.9%
City of Haines City 4%
City of Hallandale Beach 3.8%
City of Bonita Springs 3.6%
City of Sunny Isles Beach 2.8%
Village of Pinecrest* 2.5%
City of Aventura 21%
TOTAL** 65.9%

FY2018

Borrower % of All Loans
City of Hialeah 18.8%
City of North Miami Beach 11.0%
City of Deerfield Beach 9.6%
Infrastructure Development Partners  5.7%
City of Haines City 4.0%
City of Hallandale Beach 3.7%
City of Bonita Springs 3.5%
City of Sunny Isles Beach 2.7%
Village of Pinecrest* 2.4%
City of Aventura 2.0%
TOTAL** 63.4%
FY2015

Borrower % of All Loans
City of Hialeah 19.6%
City of North Miami Beach 11.5%
City of Deerfield Beach 10.0%
Infrastructure Development Partners  5.9%
City of Haines City 41%
City of Hallandale Beach 3.8%
City of Bonita Springs 3.6%
City of Sunny Isles Beach 2.8%
Village of Pinecrest* 2.5%
City of Aventura 21%
TOTAL** 65.9%
FY2012

Borrower % of All Loans
City of Hialeah 16.7%
City of North Miami Beach 12.4%
City of Deerfield Beach 71%
Infrastructure Development Partners  6.4%
City of Haines City 4.5%
City of Hallandale Beach 4%
City of Bonita Springs 3.9%
City of Sunny Isles Beach 3.0%
Village of Pinecrest* 2.7%
City of Aventura 2.3%
TOTAL** 63.1%

*Borrower also closed a bank loan through the Capital Access Program. Amount

not reflected in these totals.

**The Council has issued more than $1 billion in debt to make 132 loans and also
facilitated 24 additional bank loans totaling nearly $108 million through the Capi-

tal Access Program.
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List of Borrowers and Original Loan Amounts

Florida Municipal Loan Council
List of Borrowers and Original Loan Amounts, as of September 30, 2020

Borrower Population # of Loans Total Borrowed Project Info

City of Apopka 53,632 1 $1,955,000 City Hall, Fire Station

City of Auburndale 17,120 1 8,600,000 City Hall Improvements, Youth Baseball Facilities,
Equipment, Capital Improvements

City of Aventura 38,041 1 21,000,000 Land Acquisition, City Hall

City of Avon Park 11,201 1 1,910,000 Street Improvements

City of Bartow 20,757 2 7,455,000 Main Street Redesign, Gymnasium

Town of Bay Harbor Islands 6,091 2 12,445,000 Street Improvements, Capital Projects, Refunding

City of Belle Isle** 7,378 4 4,355,000 Capital Improvements, City Parks, Stormwater
Project, Refunding

City of Bonita Springs 55,645 1 36,565,000 Street Improvements

City of Bradenton** 58,621 2 10,695,000 Street and Park Improvements, Parking Garage

City of Cape Coral 187,307 1 4,580,000 Refunding

City of Cocoa Beach CRA n/a 1 4,245,000 Parking Structure

City of Dania Beach 32,215 1 6,775,000 Library, Fire & Police Station, Parks

City of Deerfield Beach 80,178 10 100,507,817 Land Acquistion, Community Center, Water & Sewer,
Refunding, Street improvements, Public Works Facili-
ties

City of DeFuniak Springs** 5,653 1 1,245,000 Natural Gas Project

City of Destin 13,480 2 14,760,000 Sports & Recreation Complex, Library, Public Works
Facility, Refunding

City of Eagle Lake 2,785 2 2,765,000 Water System, Public Works Facility, City Hall im-
provements, Refunding

Town of Eatonville 2,351 3 4,195,000 Town Hall, Refunding

City of Fort Myers 92,599 2 12,575,000 Ferry Terminal Facility, Community Center, Infra-
structure Projects, Refunding

City of Fort Walton Beach 21,064 2 3,295,000 Improving Pump Station, Land Acquisition

Gadsden County 46,226 2 11,265,000 Library, Capital Projects

Village of Golf 275 1 2,240,000 Membrane Water Plant

City of Haines City 27,268 4 41,605,000 Railroad Spur, CRA Projects, New Police Facility,
Renovate City Hall, Refunding

City of Hallandale Beach 39,945 3 38,185,000 Water Treatment Plant, Land Acquisition, CRA
Projects

City of Hialeah 239,956 5 197,080,000 Street Improvements, Courthouse, Water Plant

Town of Indian Shores** 1,479 1 5,930,000 Undergrounding of Utilities

City of Inverness 7375 1 5,455,000 City Hall Complex

City of Keystone Heights 1,385 1 1,000,000 Street Improvements

Town of Lake Park 8,912 2 8,470,000 Marina Improvements, Refunding

City of Largo 84,574 1 9,250,000 Sewer System Improvements, Expansion of Public
Works Complex

City of Lauderdale Lakes** 36,527 2 8,555,000 Community Center, Land Acquistion, Refunding

City of Lighthouse Point 10,536 1 16,500,000 Fire Station, Emergency Operations Center, Public
Works Building, Recreational Building, Library Reno-
vation

Town of Longboat Key 7,098 1 15,650,000 Beach Renourishment

City of Marco Island 17,595 1 985,000 Bridge Construction
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List of Borrowers and Original Loan Amounts Statistical Section

Borrower Population # of Loans Total Borrowed Project Info

Town of Melbourne Beach 3,150 3 4,520,000 City Hall Improvements, Refunding

Miami Shores Village** 10,817 1 3,200,000 New Aquatic Facility

City of New Smyrna Beach 28,594 1 1,985,000 Parks & Recreation Improvements

City of North Miami 65,089 3 11,145,000 Stormwater System, Refunding

City of North Miami Beach 47,722 6 115,500,000 Bike Trail, Refunding, Street & Water System Im-
provements, Capital Projects

Town of Oakland 3,809 2 4,390,000 Town Hall, Police & Fire Facilities, Refunding

City of Oakland Park 45,709 2 20,310,000 Stormwater System, Water & Sewer System Im-
provements

City of Oldsmar 14,998 1 2,425,000 Land Acquistion, Capital Improvements

City of Palatka** 10,770 1 7,665,000 Refunding

City of Palm Bay* 118,568 1 15,498,000 Street Improvements

Village of Palm Springs 23,867 2 19,440,000 Municipal Complex, Water & Sewer System Improve-
ments

Village of Palmetto Bay** 24,870 2 16,275,000 Municipal Complex, Village Hall, Refunding

City of Parkland 35,438 1 2,775,000 CRA Projects

Village of Pinecrest** 18,619 5 24,795,000 Village Hall, Police Station, 10-acre Park, Parrot
Jungle Conversion, Library, Capital Improvements,
Refunding

City of Plant City 39,846 2 7,955,000 Sports Stadium Improvements, Refunding

City of Port Richey 3,047 4 10,445,000 New City Hall, Refunding, Water & Sewer System

City of Safety Harbor** 17,696 1 3,610,000 Refunding, Treatment Plant Improvements

City of Seminole** 19,705 3 13,155,000 Recreation Facility Improvements, Refunding, Emer-
gency Operations Center & Public Works Projects

City of South Miami 12,900 3 14,325,000 Park Improvements, Parking Garage

Town of Southwest Ranches** 7,786 1 4,985,000 Town Hall

City of St. Augustine Beach 6,852 6 18,405,000 Street Improvements, City Hall, Land Acquistion,
Refunding

City of St. Pete Beach 9,531 2 6,265,000 City Hall, Recreation Complex

City of Stuart 16,793 1 2,190,000 Stormwater Projects, Fire Station

City of Sunny Isles Beach 23,869 2 27,815,000 Refunding, City Hall, Street & Park Improvements,

Police Station, Public Works Facility

City of Valparaiso** 5,408 5 9,885,000 Refunding, Utility Projects, Cable System Upgrades,
Wastewater & Sewer Treatment Plant, Street Im-
provements, Park Improvements

Village of Wellington 62,650 2 11,895,000 Public Building, Street & Stormwater Improvements
City of West Melbourne** 25,385 2 8,730,000 Wastewater Plant, Water Line

Infrastructure Development N/A 1 $59,110,000 Construction of State Road 9B

Partners

TOTAL LOANS*** 132 $1,070,785,817

*Commercial Paper

**Borrower also closed a bank loan through the Capital Access Program. Amount not reflected in these totals. The City of Belleair Beach,
Village of Estero, Harbour Waterway Special District, Town of Indialantic, City of Palmetto and City of Sanibel also closed loans through
the Capital Access Program. Amount not reflected in these totals.

***The Council has issued more than $1 billion in debt to make 132 loans and also facilitated 24 additional bank loans totaling nearly
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State of Florida Economy Statistical Section

State of Florida Economy

According to the Florida Legislature Office of Economic and Demographic Research's Eco-
nomic Overview reports, the Florida economy's growth slowed through the third quarter of FY2020,
although it started to pick up during the fourth quarter. Florida's 2020 population growth rate of
1.83% is significant to Florida's economy as it affects demand for nearly all goods and services pro-
duced in the state. Unemployment within the state increased in FY2020, as a result of the COVID-19
pandemic. Florida's average unemployment rate dropped to 2.8% in January and February 2020,
which was the lowest on record since 1976. In April 2020, unemployment then spiked to 13.8%, which
was the highest rate on record. Florida did end the fiscal year on a better note with unemployment at
a 7.2% rate, as illustrated in the chart below.

STATE OF FLORIDA UNEMPLOYMENT RATE
(Monthly, 2019-2020)
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According to the U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis, Florida had a total
personal income of over $1.2 trillion in 2020, which ranks the state 4th in the nation. However, per
capita personal income in Florida is $55,950, which ranks the state 25th in the nation, and is lower
than the overall United States per capita personal income of $60,320.

While numerous businesses are operating in the state, Florida's Department of Economic
Opportunity (DEO), Bureau of Labor Market Statistics show the following as the top-10 employers in
Florida for the past three years.

FY2018 FY2019 FY2020
Employer Name Number of % of Total Employer Name Number of % of Total Employer Name Number of % of Total
Employees Employment Employees Employment Employees Employment
PUBLIX SUPERMARKETS 114,104 1.27% PUBLIX SUPERMARKETS 134,483 1.57% PUBLIX SUPERMARKETS 136,356 1.58%
WALMART 109,014 1.22% WALMART 104,689 1.22% WALMART 105,557 1.22%
WALT DISNEY 58,635 0.65% WALT DISNEY 62,651 0.73% WALT DISNEY 63,849 0.74%
DADE COUNTY SCHOOLS 39,959 0.45% DADE COUNTY SCHOOLS 40,474 0.47% DADE COUNTY SCHOOLS 39,452 0.46%
US POST OFFICE 34,406 0.38% US POST OFFICE 35,095 0.41% US POST OFFICE 34,440 0.40%
BROWARD COUNTY SCHOOLS 31,873 0.36% HOME DEPOT 32,214 0.38% HOME DEPOT 32,294 0.37%
HOME DEPOT 30,041 0.34% BROWARD COUNTY SCHOOLS 31,513 0.37% US VETERANS AFFAIRS DEPT 31,464 0.36%
US VETERANS AFFAIRS DEPT 29,287 0.33% US VETERANS AFFAIRS DEPT 30,433 0.35% BROWARD COUNTY SCHOOLS 30,963 0.36%
DEPT OF AIR FORCE 29,168 0.33% DEPT OF AIR FORCE 29,942 0.35% DEPT OF AIR FORCE 31,333 0.36%
MIAMI DADE COUNTY 27,862 0.31% MIAMI DADE COUNTY 28,043 0.33% MIAMI DADE COUNTY 28,858 0.33%

*Employer Statistical Information is not available beyond what is shown, per the Department of Economic Opportunity.
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INVESTMENT SECTION

The supplemental investment section of the Council's Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report is intended to provide readers additional
information on member investment options for bond proceeds including
investment objectives, investment risk and performance.
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ARBITRAGE REBATE COMPLIANCE

Arbitrage is the profit that results from investing lower-yielding tax-exempt proceeds in higher-yield-
ing securities. The federal tax code requires that positive arbitrage earnings be rebated back to the
federal government every five years for as long as the bonds are outstanding. The bond funds that
are subject to arbitrage rebate calculations include:

» Construction/Project Funds
» Reserve Funds

» Debt Service Funds

» Cost of Issuance Funds

» Escrow (Refunding Issues)

In addition to the arbitrage rebate requirements, there is another set of rules known as yield
restriction/yield reduction requirements. As part of the administrative services provided to
borrowers, the Administrator performs the arbitrage calculations and yield restriction computations
as described in the U.S. Treasury regulations.

INVESTMENT OF BOND PROCEEDS

Financed capital projects may take many months or even years to complete. As a result, the Council
assists borrowers with the investment of loan proceeds during this temporary period. Utilizing
projected cash flows and draw schedules, borrowers can invest loan proceeds in the following
approved funds offered by the program:

» BlackRock Liquidity Funds FedFund (Money Market)
» Florida Municipal Investment Trust (FMIvT) O-2 Year High Quality Bond Fund
» Florida Municipal Investment Trust (FMIVT) 1-3 Year High Quality Bond Fund*
» Other investments as allowed by the Trust Indenture

Additional fund information about these investment options is below. A fund's performance is not
necessarily an indication of how the fund will perform in the future.

*As of 9/30/2020, no FMLC borrowers have bond proceeds invested in this fund.

BLACKROCK LIQUIDITY FUNDS FEDFUND (TFDXX) (INCEPTION 10/1/1975)

The BlackRock Liquidity Funds FedFund (FedFund) is a money market investment option to
borrowers in the program. BlackRock Advisors, LLC, (BlackRock) is the investment advisor. The fund
seeks to preserve the value of the investment at $1.00 per share, and shares of the fund may be
redeemed or purchased on any business day.

As per the prospectus, FedFund invests at least 99.5% of its total assets in cash, U.S. Treasury bills,
notes and other obligations issued or guaranteed as to principal and interest by the U.S. Government,
its agencies or instrumentalities, and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations or cash. The
yield of the Fund is not directly tied to the federal funds rate. The Fund invests in securities matur-
ing in 397 days or less (with certain exceptions), and the portfolio will have a dollar-weighted aver-
age maturity of 60 days or less and a dollar-weighted average life of 120 days or less. The Fund may
invest in variable and floating rate instruments and transact in securities on a when-issued, delayed
delivery or forward commmitment basis. The securities purchased by the Fund are subject to the qual-
ity, diversification and other requirements of Rule 2a-7 under the Investment Company Act of 1940,
as amended (the "1940 Act"), and other rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission. The fund is
rated AAA. Total expenses are approximately 17 bps.
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Objective. The fund's objective is to seek current income as is consistent with liquidity and stability of
principal.

Investment Risk. Shares of the fund are neither insured nor guaranteed by any U.S. government
agency including the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). Although the fund seeks to
preserve the value of amounts deposited at $1.00 per share, it is possible to lose money by investing
in the fund.

Performance. The table below provides the fund's performance up to the last 10 years.

Performance Returns - Net of All Fees and Expenses

Performance Ending September 30, 2020

BlackRock Liquidity Funds FedFund’
90 Day U.S. T-Bills Index '

Performance returns reported by BlackRock Inc. and Asset Consulting Group.

1Year

0.79%
110%

3 Years

1.48%
1.69%

5 Years

1.05%
1.20%

10 Years

0.53%
0.64%

As of September 30, 2020, the BlackRock Liquidity Funds FedFund held cash and 274 securities. The

top 10 holdings are listed below.

10

Issue Name

TREASURY BILL

TREASURY BILL

TREASURY BILL

TREASURY BILL

TREASURY BILL

TREASURY BILL

TRI-PARTY BARCLAYS BANK PLC

TRI-PARTY FICC - THE BANK OF NEW YORK

TREASURY BILL

TREASURY BILL

Category

uU.s.

uU.s.

u.s.

ULSs

U.S.

uU.s.

u.s.

u.s.

u.s.

ULSs

Treasury Debt
Treasury Debt
Treasury Debt
Treasury Debt
Treasury Debt

Treasury Debt

Treasury Repurchase Agreement

Treasury Repurchase Agreement

Treasury Debt

Treasury Debt

Yield or Coupon

0.14%

0.13%

0.19%

0.10%

0.13%

0.12%

0.06%

0.08%

0.11%

0.13%

Maturity Date

10/22/2020

1/28/2021

10/15/2020

1/21/2021

3/25/2021

10/8/2020

10/1/2020

10/1/2020

10/6/2020

11/10/2020

TOTAL

Amortized Cost

$5,186,112,816

4,729,704,759

4,468,239,773

3,798,795,400

3,708,804,328

3,087,709,599

3,017,000,000

3,000,000,000

2,957,277,119

2,899,801,346

$36,853,445,140
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FLORIDA MUNICIPAL INVESTMENT TRUST (FMIVT)
0-2 YEAR HIGH QUALITY BOND FUND (INCEPTION 12/3/2002)

The FMIVT O0-2 Year High Quality Bond Fund has been actively managed by Atlanta Capital Manage-
ment Company since April 1, 2009, and invests in government and high-quality debt securities while
maintaining an average maturity of approximately one year. The portfolio is valued on the 15th and
last business day of the month. If the 15th is not a business day, the valuation is the next succeed-
ing business day. Management fees are 10 bps, and administrative fees are 10.5 bps. Total expenses
are approximately 24 bps. As of September 30, 2020, the 0-2 Year High Quality Bond Fund had a net
position of $177 million, representing 30 participants.

The fund invests in direct obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government or any of its agen-
cies, money market obligations, asset-backed securities, mortgage securities including CMOs and
commingled investment funds. The fund is rated AAA by Fitch Ratings.

Objective. The fund is designed to provide an investment pool alternative for members that have
excess funds and an investment horizon greater than that of money market instruments. The invest-
ment objectives are to, one, preserve capital and, two, exceed the return of the Bank of America
(BofA) Merrill Lynch 1-Year Treasury Note Index over three-year periods.

Investment Risk. Shares of the fund are neither insured nor guaranteed by any U.S. government
agency including the FDIC. The fund is subject to interest rate, credit and liquidity risk, which may
cause a loss of principal. The fair value of the securities will fluctuate in value as interest rates, credit
and liquidity conditions change, which could affect the fund's net position.

Performance* The fund advanced 0.2% in the third quarter, in line with the peer group of enhanced
cash managers but ahead of the performance of the BofA Merrill Lynch 1-Year Treasury Note Index by
nearly 20 basis points. Over the past year, the portfolio is up 2.4% matching the performance of the
Bank of America (BofA) Merrill Lynch 1-Year Treasury Note Index and ranking in the top 36th percentile
in the peer group of enhanced cash managers. This strategy is meeting the objective of providing con-
sistent return enhancement over its benchmark while maintaining a very favorable risk-adjusted return
profile. This fund represents a strong short maturity complement to the other fixed-income options
within the FMIVT.

*Returns presented are gross of fees and expenses.

Performance Returns - Net of All Fees and Expenses

Performance Ending September 30, 2020
Qtr. 1Year 3Years 5Years 7 Years 10 Years

FMIVT O-2 Year High Quality Bond Fund’ 018% 219% 2.09% 1.51% 114% 0.89%
ICE BofA ML 1 Year Treasury Note Index  0.08% 2.37% 219%  1.54% 117% 0.93%

"Assets from the FMIVT High Quality Government Fund were transitioned on April 1, 2009, to the
FMIVT O-2 Year High Quality Bond Fund. Returns prepared by Asset Consulting Group.
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FMIVT 0-2 YEAR HIGH QUALITY BOND FUND (CONTINUED)

As of September 30, 2020, the O-2 Year High Quality Bond Fund held 97 securities. The top 10 hold-
ings are listed below. The complete holdings report can be found at www.flcities.com/services/invest-
ments-(fmivt).

Fair Value % of Account

# Issue Name ($000's) Fair Value
1 US Treasury Notes 1.125% February 2021 $ 24,101 13.35%
2 US Treasury Notes 2.625% July 2021 23,453 12.99%
3 US Treasury Notes 2.750% August 2021 11,738 6.50%
4 US Treasury Bill 2021 8,990 4.98%
5 US Treasury Notes 1.750% November 2020 5,010 2.77%
6 Northern Trust Institutional US Government Money Market 4,847 2.68%
7 FHMS K717 A2 2.991% September 2021 4,362 2.42%
8 FHMS K723 A12.219% April 2021 4,154 2.30%
9 CARMAX Auto Owner Trust 17-1 A4 2.270% September 2022 3,870 2.14%
10 World Omni Auto Receivables Trust 20-C A2 0.350% December 2023 3,751 2.08%
TOTAL $ 94,276 52.21%

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL INVESTMENT TRUST (FMIVT)
1-3 YEAR HIGH QUALITY BOND FUND (INCEPTION 10/1/1995)

The FMIVT 1-3 Year High Quality Bond Fund has been actively managed by Atlanta Capital Manage-
ment Company since October 1, 1995, and invests in government and high quality debt securities
while maintaining an average maturity of two years. The portfolio is valued on the 15th and last busi-
ness day of the month. If the 15th is not a business day, the valuation is the next succeeding business
day. Management fees are 10 bps, and administrative fees are 10.5 bps. Total expenses are approxi-
mately 24 bps. As of September 30, 2020, the 1-3 Year High Quality Bond Fund had a net position of
$226 million, representing 34 participants.

The fund may invest in direct obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government or any of its
agencies, money market obligations, asset-backed securities, mortgage securities including CMOs
and commingled investment funds. The fund is rated AAA by Fitch.

Objective. The fund is designed to provide an investment pool alternative for members that have ex-
cess funds and an investment horizon greater than that of money market instruments. The investment
objective is, one, to preserve capital and, two, exceed the return of the Bank of America (BofA) Merrill
Lynch 1-3 Year Government Index over three-year periods.

Investment Risk. Shares of the fund are neither insured nor guaranteed by any U.S. government
agency including the FDIC. The fund is subject to interest rate, credit and liquidity risk, which may
cause a loss of principal. The fair value of the securities will fluctuate in value as interest rates, credit
and liquidity conditions change, which could affect the fund's net position.

67—



FMIVT 1-3 YEAR HIGH QUALITY BOND FUND (CONTINUED)

Performance* The fund outperformed the BofA Merrill Lynch 1-3 Year Government Index in the third
quarter and has managed to outpace the benchmark over all longer term time periods. This strategy
has returned 1.4% annually on average over the past 10 years. While this strategy struggled to keep
pace with the peer group of short duration fixed income managers (up 2.1%) it has moderately out-
performed its benchmark despite a lower risk profile.

*Returns presented are gross of fees and expenses.

Performance Returns — Net of All Fees and Expenses

Performance Ending September 30, 2020
Qtr. 1Year 3Years 5Years 7Years 10 Years

FMIVT 1-3 Year High Quality Bond Fund' 016% 3.38% 2.66% 1.83% 1.50% 1.22%
ICE BofA ML 1-3 Yr Government Index O0.11% 3.56% 2.64% 1.87% 1.53% 1.30%

'Returns prepared by Asset Consulting Group.
As of September 30, 2020, the 1-3 Year High Quality Bond Fund held 118 securities. The top 10
holdings are listed below. The complete holdings report can be found at www.flcities.com/services/

investments-(fmivt).

Fair Value % of Account

# Issue Name ($000s") Fair Value
1 US Treasury Notes 2.750% August 2021 $ 1,917 5.27%
2 US Treasury Notes 2.125% May 2022 11,357 5.02%
3 US Treasury Bill 2021 9,990 4.42%
4 US Treasury Notes 2.000% February 2022 9,745 4.31%
5 US Treasury Notes 1.625% August 2022 9258} 4.09%
6 US Treasury Notes 2.500% February 2022 7,228 3.20%
7 US Treasury Notes 1.375% October 2022 7177 3.17%
8 Northern Trust Institutional US Government Money Market 6,520 2.88%
9 FNMA #MA4149 1.500% October 2030 6,315 2.79%

10 Ally Auto Receivables Trust 2019-1 2.910% September 2023 5,378 2.38%

TOTAL $ 84,880 37.53%
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FLORIDA MUNICIPAL LOAN COUNCIL
INVESTMENT POLICY
Amended and Restated As of March 21, 2019

L. AUTHORITY

In accordance with the Administration Agreement between the Florida League of Cities,
Inc. and the Florida Municipal Loan Council, dated February 19, 1999, as amended, the
responsibility for supervising the investment of moneys in any of the funds and accounts of the
Florida Municipal Loan Council (the "Council") resides with the Florida League of Cities, Inc.,
acting as the "Administrator", under the direction of the Board of Directors of the Council. This
policy has been adopted pursuant to and consistent with the Interlocal Agreement creating the
Council and all applicable state and federal law. Except as otherwise defined herein, the capitalized
terms in this policy shall have the same meaning as such terms have in the Interlocal Agreement
creating the Council or the Administrative Agreement.

II. SCOPE AND PURPOSE

Moneys in any of the funds and accounts shall be invested by the Trustee (as identified in
the applicable Trust Indenture), at the direction of the Council through the Administrator under the
guidelines as herein set forth. No person may engage in any investment transaction with funds held
in a trust relationship by the Council, except as authorized by the Board of Directors or as herein
set forth. The policies and procedures herein are intended to provide sufficient latitude and
operating flexibility to respond to changing market and economic conditions and to effectively
manage the Council's financial assets so as to maximize the expected return on assets within an
acceptable exposure to investment risk. There are times when risks of specific investments may
temporarily increase such that the Council may be required to operate under a more restrictive
policy. Additionally, at times, exceptions to the policy may need to be made, on a case by case
basis, and with the approval of the Board of Directors.

III.  OBJECTIVES

The objective of the Council's investment activity is to maximize the expected return in
support the Council's management and investment strategies considering the probable income, total
return and probable safety of the invested funds. Moneys in the funds and accounts shall be
invested in accordance with the terms of the Trust Indenture and applicable state laws. Short-term
holdings of the Council shall be of high quality and ready marketability with maturities diversified
appropriately with respect to the current operating expenses and expected cash flow obligations of
the Council. The Council's portfolio shall be designed to attain a market rate of return throughout
financial and economic cycles, taking into account the Council's investment objectives, risk
constraints and permitted investments as referenced herein.

IV.  DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Under the direction of the Board of Directors, it shall be the responsibility of the
Administrator to supervise and administer the Council's investment program pursuant to a written
agreement between the Council and the Administrator including, but not limited to, the following:
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1. Supervise and coordinate the activities of qualified investment management firms,
dealers, brokers, issuers, custodians, consultants and other investment advisors in keeping with this
investment policy.

2. Provide assistance in the administration and operation of the Council's investment
program.
3. Establish accounting systems and procedures for the safekeeping, disposal of and

recording of all investment assets held or controlled by the Council including the establishment of
appropriate internal controls as required.

4. Assist in the design, development, operation, review and evaluation of the Council's
investment program for compliance with this policy. Advise the Board of Directors as to
recommendations relative to amendments to this policy. Inform the Board of Directors of
unaddressed concerns with the Council's investment program.

5. Immediately notify the Board of Directors in the event of any information that may
have a severe and adverse effect on the Council's investment program under the provisions of this
policy.

V. PRUDENCE AND ETHICS

The standard of prudence to be used by investment advisors, money managers or other
qualified parties or individuals with contracted investment responsibilities with the Council (the
"Managers") shall be by "prudent person" which provides that the investments of the Council shall
be made with the judgment and care under the circumstances then prevailing which persons of
prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not in regard
to speculation but in regard to the permanent disposition of the invested funds considering the
probable income, total return and probable safety of these funds. Managers shall adhere to the
fiduciary standards set forth in the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 at 29 U.S.C.
s. 1104(a)(1)(A) through (C). Individuals, acting in accordance with established procedures and
exercising due diligence, shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual security's
credit risk or market price changes, provided deviations from expectations are reported in a timely
fashion and appropriate action is taken to minimize any investment losses.

Any individual who is involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal
business activity that could conflict with proper execution of the investment program, or which
could impair their ability to make impartial investment decisions. Managers shall have a written
policy which addresses the disclosure of potential conflict-of-interests which shall be submitted to
the Administrator upon request. Managers shall also disclose to the Administrator any material
financial/investment position or finding which may be contrary to this policy or otherwise related to
the performance of the Council's portfolio. Any adverse findings of the U.S. Department of Labor
and/or the Securities and Exchange Commission' regarding a Manager or its financial activities
shall be brought to the immediate attention of the Board of Directors by the Administrator.
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Before engaging in any investment transactions with the Council, a Manager shall have
submitted to the Administrator a signed certification from a duly authorized representative attesting
that the individuals responsible for the Council's account have reviewed this investment policy and
that they agree to undertake reasonable efforts to preclude imprudent transactions involving the
funds of the Council.

Assets can be held in commingled (mutual) funds as well as privately managed separate
accounts. Assets held in commingled accounts should be managed in style/strategy consistent with
the fund’s stated objective and constraints. If assets are held in a commingled account, the
Administrator will make its best efforts to utilize funds that are managed in strategies that are
generally consistent with this Policy.

VI.  REPORTING AND PERFORMANCE

The Administrator shall submit to the Board of Directors a periodic investment report with
information sufficient to provide for a comprehensive review of investment activity and
performance. This report may summarize recent market conditions and economic developments.
The report would also summarize the investment strategies employed in the most recent quarter,
and describe the portfolio in terms of investment securities, maturities, risk characteristics and other
relevant features.

Managers shall provide timely transaction and performance data to record and document
investment activity including asset valuation, yield and total return data and such other relative
performance data of the Council's portfolio on a periodic basis as may be reasonably requested by
the Administrator.

The Administrator, Managers, and other contracted parties shall provide to the Council's
Auditor such verifications or reports as are required for the purpose of developing and supporting
the annual financial statements of the Council, and the footnotes thereto.

The Administrator shall recommend and provide appropriate performance measures or
indices in evaluating the performance of the Council's portfolio. The Administrator shall monitor
portfolio performance and determine the applicability of the indices and recommend changes as
needed.

VII. BANK AND DEALER SELECTION

Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements shall be negotiated only with firms
approved in accordance with this policy.

For broker/dealers of other investment instruments, the Council shall utilize primary dealers
and such other reputable and recognized dealers as may be recommended by the Managers and the
Administrator.
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VIII. SAFEKEEPING AND CUSTODY

All securities purchased by the Council under this policy shall be properly designated as
assets of the Council and shall be protected through the use of a third-party custody/safekeeping
agent. The Administrator on behalf of the Council shall enter into a formal agreement with an
institution of such size and expertise as is necessary to provide the services needed to protect and
secure the investment assets of the Council.

All securities purchased by the Council under this policy shall be purchased using the
"delivery versus payment" procedure. If it is ever determined to be necessary to perform security
transactions on a "free delivery" basis, or to have securities held by the broker/dealer for a
temporary period, the approval of the Administrator must be secured prior thereto and the reason
documented in writing and presented to the Board of Directors.

IX.  RISKS

The Council recognizes that investment risks can result from issuer defaults, market price
changes, changes in credit rating, reinvestment of principal or interest, or various technical
complications leading to temporary illiquidity. Portfolio diversification, controlled duration
strategies, and maturity limitations are employed as the primary methods of controlling risk.
Managers are expected to display prudence in the selection of securities as a way to minimize
default risk. In the event of a default by a specific issuer, the Manager shall review and, if
appropriate, proceed to liquidate securities having comparable credit risks. In the event that a
security held by the Council is downgraded relative to its credit quality, the Manager shall
immediately notify the Administrator with such recommendations for rectifying any non-
compliance with this policy within a reasonable time period.

X. SECURITY SELECTION PROCESS

When purchasing or selling securities, Managers shall select securities which provide the highest
rate of expected return within the parameters of this policy. Managers shall exercise prudence in
managing transaction costs associated with the purchasing and selling of securities in accordance
with this policy.

XIL. LIQUIDITY

The Council shall provide sufficient liquidity necessary in order to provide moneys to meet any
required payment, transfer, withdrawal or disbursement from the fund or accounts.

XII.  AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS
In an effort to accomplish the objectives of the Council's portfolio, this policy identifies various
authorized investment instruments, issuer diversification, maturity constraints and investment

ratings and liquidity parameters.

(A)  Direct obligations of the United States of America (including obligations issued or held in
book-entry form on the books of the Department of the Treasury of the United States of
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(B)

(©)

(D)

(E)
(F)

(G)

(H)
@

America) or obligations the principal of and interest on which are fully and uncon-
ditionally guaranteed by the United States of America, including (if such instruments
become legal investments under the laws of the State for moneys held hereunder)
instruments evidencing an ownership interest in securities described in this clause (a).

Evidence of ownership of proportionate interest in Government Obligations described in
clause (a) of this definition limited to circumstances wherein (i) a bank or trust company
acts as custodian and holds the underlying obligations; (ii) the owner of the investment is
the real party in interest and has the right to proceed directly and individually against the
obligor of the underlying obligations; and (iii) the underlying obligations are held in a
special account separate and apart from the custodian's general assets, and are not available
to satisfy any claim of the custodian, any person claiming through the custodian, or any
person to whom the custodian may be obligated.

Interest-bearing demand or time deposits (including certificates of deposit) in banks
(including the Trustee) and savings and loan associations which deposits are fully insured
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") or which are secured at all times by
collateral security (described in clause (a) of this definition) in which the Trustee has a
perfected first lien and which (i) is held by the Trustee or a third-party agent, (ii) is not
subject to liens and claims of third-parties, (iii) has a market value (valued at least every 14
days) of no less than the amount of moneys so invested and interest accrued thereon.

Investment agreements or repurchase agreements (the maturity of which is less than thirty
(30) days) with a bank or trust company organized under the laws of any state of the United
States or with a national banking association, insurance company or government bond
dealer reporting to, trading with and recognized as a primary dealer by the Federal Reserve
Bank of New York and which is a member of The Security Investors Protection Corporation
or with a dealer which is rated (or the parent company of which is rated) "A" or above by
S&P and Fitch if such investments are fully secured by FDIC or collateral security
described in (a) of this definition, in which the Trustee has a perfected first lien and which
(1) is held by the Trustee or a third-party agent during the term of such repurchase
agreement, (ii) is not subject to liens or claims of third parties, and (iii) has a market value
(determined at least once every 7 days) at least equal to 104% of the amount so invested and
interest accrued thereon.

The Florida Municipal Investment Trust.

Securities and Exchange Commission registered money market funds with the highest credit
quality rating from a nationally recognized rating agency.

The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund created pursuant to Chapter 218, Part IV,
Florida Statutes for which the Florida State Board of Administration acts as custodian.

Any other investment in which proceeds of the Bonds may be invested under Florida law.

Goldman Sachs Prime Obligation Fund #1235
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J) BlackRock Liquidity Funds FedFund (TFDXX)

With regard to the FMLC Gas Prepay Program, Qualified Investments as allowed and provided for
in the various program Trust Indentures are considered Authorized Investments under the FMLC
Investment Policy.

XV. EFFECTIVE DATE

The Council's investment policy shall become effective immediately upon its adoption by
the Board of Directors.

As amended and adopted by the Board of Directors on the 21st day of March, 2019.

Chairman, Board of Directors
Florida Municipal Loan Council

Attest:

Executive Director, Florida Leaguejof Cities, Inc.
For the Administrator
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